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Honorable Supervisor
and Town Board
Town of Cortlandt, New York

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR”) for the Town of Cortlandt, New York (“Town™) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 is herewith submitted. The New York State Comptroller's Office
requires the Town to submit an annual report of the financial records and transactions presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The Town has elected to have these
statements audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. This CAFR is issued pursuant to this requirement.

The report was prepared by the Town Comptrolier's Office, which is responsible for both the accuracy of
the data and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Town has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to both protect the Town's assets from loss,
theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of intemal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the Town’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial
report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town's financial statements have been audited by PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the Town, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015, are free from
material misstatement. The independent audit involved the examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the Town’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2015, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’




report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. The financial section also
includes a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the December 31, 2015 financial statements
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(*MD&A"). The letter of transmittal was designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

Profile of the Town

The Town was established in 1788 by New York State as a separate political entity vested with
independent taxing and debt authority. There are two incorporated villages situated within the Town's
borders; the Village of Croton-on-Hudson and the Village of Buchanan. The Town has portions of five
independently governed school districts, which rely on the taxing powers granted by New York State to
raise revenues for school district purposes. The school districts use the Town’s assessment roll as the
basis for taxation of property within the Town. '

The Town Board is the legisiative, appropriating, governing and policy determining body of the Town and
consists of four councilpersons, elected at large to serve a four-year term, plus the Supervisor.
Councilpersons may serve an unlimited number of terms. It is the responsibility of the Town Board to
enact, by resolution, all legislation including ordinances and local laws. Annual budgets for the Town
must be approved by the Board; modifications and transfers between budgetary approprlatlons also must
be authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the Supervisor.

The Supervisor is the chief executive and financial officer of the Town and is elected for a two-year term
of office. In addition, the Supervisor is a full member of and the presiding officer of the Town Board.
Duties of the Supervisor include; the administration of the Town’s daily functions, budget preparation and
control, and debt issuance. The Town provides a wide range of governmental services to its residents.
Highway construction and maintenance of roads is a Town function. Recreation is provided and parks
are maintained through the Town government. Water, sewer, lighting and fire protection services are
fumished by various special districts, which have been formed within the Town. Other services
performed at the Town level include: property assessment, code enforcement, zoning adminisiration,
planning and refuse collection.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town's financial planning and control. All
departmenis are required to file detailed estimates of revenues (other than real property taxes) and
expenditures for the next fiscal year with the budget officer on or before October 20". Estimates for sach
fire district and for the library situated within the Town must also be filed with the budget officer by this
date (the Town has no authority to amend the budget submitted by the fire districts or the library). After
reviewing these estimates, the budget officer prepares a tentative budget, which includes his
recommerndations. A budget message explaining the main features of the budget IS also prepared at this
time. The tentative budget is filed with the Town Clerk not later than October 30", Subsequently, the
Town Clerk presents the tentative budget to the Town Board at the regular or special hearing, which
must be held on or before November 10™. The Town Board reviews the tentative budget and makes
such changes as it deems necessary and that are consistent with the provisions of the law. Following this
review process, the tentative budget and such modifications, if any, as approved by the Town Board
become the preliminary budget. A public hearing, notice of which must be duly published in the Town's
official newspaper, on the preliminary budget is required to be held no later than December 10" At the
hearing, any persocn may express his or her opinion concerning the preliminary budget; however, there is
no requirement or provision that the preliminary budget or any portion thereof be voted on by members of
the public. After the public hearing, the Town Board may further change and revise the preliminary
budget. The Town Board, by resolution, adopts the preliminary budget as submitted or amended no later
than December 20", at which time the preliminary budget becomes the annual budget of the Town for
the ensuing fiscal year. Budgetary control during the year is the responsibility of the Supervisor.
However, any changes or modifications to the annual budget, including the transfer of appropriations
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among functions, must be approved by resolution of the Town Board. Budget to actual comparisons are
provided in this report for each individual fund for which an annual budget has been adopted. For the
General, Highway and Special Districts funds, these comparisons are presented as part of the basic
financial statements. For other governmental funds (Debt Service Fund) with annual budgets, the
comparisons are presented in the non-major governmental fund subsection of this report.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when itis considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town operates.

Local Economy

The Town is situated in the north western portion of Westchester County, which continues to rank
among the most affluent counties in the United States. The Town, outside the Villages of Croton-on-
Hudson and Buchanan, encompasses approximately 26 square miles and is primarily suburban
residential in nature and comprises 7.8% of the County’s land area. The Town's 2010 census
population, excluding the Villages, was 31,292. Alargely rural town in the 1950’s, Cortlandt developed
into a residential suburb, with many residents commuting to New York City, White Plains and other
employment centers. Retail sales, professional services and light industrial activities are located along
its major highway cormidors.

Development activity continued to be slow in 2015 although there are signs that the pace of
construction is starting to pick up. There were eleven (11) new Planning Board applications in 2015,
compared with nine (9) in 2014 and sixteen (18) in 2013. Once again, the majority of the applications
were for small projects such as lot line adjustments or minor site plans. Only one new subdivision
application was submitted, MJD Contracting, for a 2-lot minor subdivision located on Hiflcrest Drive. In
addition, Hanover Estates, a 27 lot subdivision on Croton Avenue, received Preliminary Plat approval in
2015. Construction is continuing on the 147 unit Valeria Townhouse project with several units
constructed and occupied in Phase Hi. During 2015 the applicant began installation of the infrastructure
for Phase IV and units should be under construction in this area during 2016. There has been
construction activity on several previously approved sites as houses are being built in the Sunset Ridge,
Hillside Estates and MountainView Estates subdivisions. In 2015 thirty-three (33) building permits were
issued for single and 2-family dwellings compared with fourteen (14) in 2014 and (4) in 2013.

With respect to commercial development activity the Town continued to review the Cortlandt
Crossing Development throughout 2015. This large shopping center project, located on Cortlandt
Boulevard, has been reduced in scope to 130,000 sq. ft. The Town Board is Lead Agent on the project.
The environmental review was completed in 2015 and approval is expected in 2016. Also located on
Cortlandt Boulevard, the 11,640 sq. ft. Shoppes on the Boulevard project was completed and fully
occupied in 2015. Several smali commercial changes of use were also approved in 2015,

Municipal infrastructure projects completed in 2015 included $1.3 million dollars of road paving,
the completion of the Lake Meahagh Park improvements and the Verplanck Nature Preserve and Trails.
Planning and design work continued for several large scale infrastructure projects including sidewatks on
Broadway in the hamlet of Verplanck, sidewalks on Route 94, the Annsville Creek Pedestrian Path, and
for landscape, aesthetic and pedestrian improvements to Route 6, also known as Cortlandt Boulevard.




Relevant Financial Policies

The Town prepares its budgets, capital improvement plans and forecasts with various financial policies in
mind, including cash management and investment, capital assets, debt management, revenues and
expenditures, fund balance and procurement/purchasing. The Town does not foresee any issues with its
ability to comply with the current policies in the implementation of its near and long-term initiatives.

Long-term Financial Planning

The Town adopts a five year capital improvement program annually. Projects can encompass Water,
Highway, Parks and Recreation and other public work projects. Some projects are funded through matching
dollars, either from CDBG funds or NYS grants, while others the Town finanices through debt. Each yearthe
Town Board reviews the plan and determines which projects to fund based on a priority of needs and public
safety. The Board has approved the purchase of property from Con Edison in the hamlet of Verplanck. This
purchase is expected to ciose in 2016. in 2015, the Town issued a bond anticipation note for the addition of
all-purpose ball fields at Sprout Brook Park, which will be completed in 2018. The Town also anticipates
completing various water projects in the next two years, to replace an existing water storage tank, increase
drinking water reserves and replace old infrastructure to improve water distribution within the Cortlandt
Consolidated Water District. Bonds will be issued in the future to cover the water district improvements.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association ("GFOA”} awarded a Certificate of Achievernent for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.
This was the 20th consecutive year that the Town received this award. The Certificate of Achievement is
a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state
and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable

and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program

~ standards. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. '

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year onily. We believe our current report
continues {o conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting itto
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another cerfificate.

Preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the
members of the Comptroller's Depariment, Town Assessor, Receiver of Taxes, Town Cierk, and
Planning Department, as well as our independent auditor, PKF O’Connor Davis, LLP who assisted in its
preparation. | would also like to thank the Town Supervisor and the members of the Town Board for their
interest and support in the financial operations of the Town.

Respectiully submitted,

ffaslbrt

Patricia Robcke
Comptroller
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ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Supervisor and Town Board of
the Town of Cortlandt, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Cortlandt, New York
{(“Town”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the reiated notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Towr’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this.includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuras in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Town's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. .

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
aucit opinions. '

Oginions

In our cpinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of December 31, 2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the
General, Town Outside Villages, Highway and Special Districts funds for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LIP ’
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: §14.381.8800 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited netwark of legally independent firms and does not accapt any responsibility or
Tiabifity for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.




Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention o Note 2E and Note 3F in the notes to financial statements which disclose the effects of
the Town's adoption of the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 68
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” and 71 “Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date”. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis and the schedules included under Required Supplementary Information in the
accompanying table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
the introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciting
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

PE O Cramp, Danis, 129
PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York

June 2, 2016




2015 Town of Cortlandt, New York

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
December 31, 2015

introduction

The foliowing discussion and analysis of the Town of Cortlandt, New York’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) provides and overview of the financial activities of the Town of
Cortlandt, New York for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. Please read it in conjunction
with the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those statements that follow
this section.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for‘ﬁscal‘year 2015 are as follows:

s For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Town implemented the provisions of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB’) Statement No. 88, “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions”. The GASB is charged with developing the
accounting rules that apply to governments, including school districts and BOCES. This
pronouncement established new accounting and financial reporting requirements
associated with the Town’s participation in the cost sharing multiple employer pension
plans administered by the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(“ERS"). Under the new standards, cost-sharing employers are required to report in their
district-wide financial statements a net pension liability (asset), pension expense and
pension-related deferred inflows and outflows of resources based on their proportionate
share of their proportionate share of the collective amounts for all of the municipalities in
the plan. At December 31, 2015, the Town's reported in its Statement of Net Position a
liability of $1,411,945 for its proportionate share of the ERS net pension liability. More
detailed information about the Town’s pension plan reporting in accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, including amounts reported as pension expense
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

= On the government-wide financial statements, the assets and deferred outflows of the
primary government, exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $51,744,620. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the
Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, however, unrestricted net position
in the current year reflects a negative $9,198,564. The unrestricted net position
decreased by $1,428,617, due primarily to the Annual Required Contribution for Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) of $4,810,000, of which approximately 58% is
unfunded by current net annual cost contributions of $2,810,000. This is a trend that will
continue because of the GASB Statement #45 reporting requirements, combined with
the fact that New York State law currently prohibits municipalities to fund this annual
cost. This may change in the future as new legislation for funding has been proposed in
2015, by the state Comptroller.

s As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $15,961 972, a decrease of $1,025,438. Exclusive of
the Capital Projects Fund, the combined ending fund balances were $13,733,089, of
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which the total unassigned fund balances were $2,798,653 at Decemier 31, 2015. The
Town's Special Revenue funds reflected assigned fund balance of $7,327,532 at
December 31, 2015.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$2 798,653 or 24% of total General Fund expenditures and other financing uses.

e The Town retired $1,249,000 of general obligation debt. The Town did not issue any new
General Obligation bonds or long term debt during the year ended December 31, 2015.

COverview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The basic financial statements include three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also includes other supplementary information as
listed in the table of contents.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the readers with a broad
overview of the Town’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows with the difference reporied as nef position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator as fo whether the
financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information reflecting how the Town’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (for example, uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacaticn leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The
governmental activities of the Town include general government support, public safety, health,
transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and recreation, home and
community services, and interest. '

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion
and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent
and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The Town, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with the finance-
related and legal requirements. Al of the funds of the Town can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, internal service funds and fiduciary funds.

4




Govemmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on rear-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaiuating a
government'’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a recongiliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental aclivities.

The Town maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Town Outside Villages Fund,
Highway Fund, Special Districts Fund and Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be
major funds. Data for the other two governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Town Outside Villages
Fund, Highway Fund, and Special Districts Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided for these funds within the basic financial statements to demonstrate compliance with
the respective budgets.

Proprietary Funds

There are two types of proprietary funds, enterprise and internal service. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions, which would be presented in the business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The Town does not have any enterprise funds.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among various functions. The Town uses an intemal service fund to account for workers’
compensation benefits. These services benefit the Town and have been included within the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town programs. The
Town maintains only one type of fiduciary fund that is known as an Agency Fund. Resources
are heid in this Fund by the Town purely in a custodial capacity. The activity in this Fund is
limited to the receipt, temporary investment, a remittance of resources to the appropriate
individuals, organizations or governments. '

The financial statements for the governmental and fiduciary funds can be found in the basic
financial statements section of this report.




Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements are located following the basic financial statements section of this report.

Qther Information

Additional statements and schedules can be found immediately following the notes to financial
statements. These include the required suppltementary information for the Town’s other post-
employment benefit obligations, the combining statements for the non-major governmental
funds and schedules of budget to actual comparisons. ' '

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Town’s financial
position. In the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $51,744,620 at the close of the
current fiscal year.

Governmental Activities
Met Position
Decernber 31, 2015

2015 2014

Current Assets $ 71702384 $ 72,470,128
Investment in Joint Venture 5,427 493 5,479,314
Capital Assets, net 58,654,040 59,789,570

Total Assets 135,783,917 137,739,012
Deferred QOuiflows of Resources 1,745 198 -
Current Liabilities 52,585,837 52,605,924
Long-term Liabilities 33,157,473 30,226,518

Total Liabilities 85,743,310 82,832,442
Deferred Inflow of Rescurces 41,185 -
NET POSITION :
Invested in capital assets 53,892,881 54 544 570
Restricted - : : 7,050,303 8,131,047
Unrestricted (9,198,564) {7,769,947)

Total Net Position $ 51744620 $ 54,906,570




Net Position Distribution
December31, 2015

Unrestricted

Assets
18% ~ Restricted

Assets
14%

Investment inf I
Capital Assets

104%

Approximately, 14% of the Town’s net position is resiricted for various purposes {capital
projects, debt service, special revenue funds, etc.) The restricted net position of $7,050,303,
represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be uséd. The
restrictions are as follows:

2015 2014

Capital Projects $ 2960562 $ 3,169,650
Debt Service 2,467,063 2,853,660
Future Capital Projects 341,847 277,410
Special Revenue Funds:

Highway , - -

Special Districts 1,257,885 1,773,430

Special Purposes ' - 22,839 . 57,797

Total $ 7,050,303 §$ 8,131,947

Governmental Activities

Investments in capital assets, less any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets, account

for 104% of the total net position or $53,892,881. The Town uses these assets to provide

services to citizens. Consequently, the assets cannot be used for future spending. Although

the Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debit, it should be noted that

the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital
assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of net position, representing unrestricted net position, to be used to meet
the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, is a negative $9,198,564. This does
not mean that the Town does not have resources available to meet its obligations in the ensuing
year. Rather, it is the result of having long-term commitments, including compensated absences
of $2,210,584, bonds payable of $6,37 1,000, net pension liability of $1,411,945 and other post-
employment benefit obligations equaling $20,740,000, that are greater than currently available




resources. Claim liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical
techniques to produce current estimates of potential long term liabilities. Payments for these
liabilities will be budgeted in the year that actual payment will be made. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the Town is able to report a positive net position of $51,744,620 for the government

as a whole.

Changes in Net Position

December 31, 2015

2015 2014
REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 8298012 $ 7,680,675
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,863,718 1,068,793
Capital Grants and Contributions 317,264 261,357
General Revenues
Real Property Taxes 20,483,864 20,474,159
Other Tax ltems 1,806,876 1,686,679
Non-Property Taxes - 4,512,662 4,596 327
Unrestricted Use of Money and Property 7,015 14,865
Unrestricted State Aid 1,238,051 1,037,232
Miscellansous 199,111 195,521
Insurance Recoveries 11,393 149,976
Total Revenues 38,718,966 37,065,584
PROGRANM EXPENSES
General Government Support 6,706,694 7,916,968
Public Safety 2,651,572 2,638,189
Health 1,117,634 838,335
Transportation , 9,187,620 10,490,811
~ Economic Opporiunity and Development 844,603 937,365
Culture and Recreation B 6,579,896 6,391,835
Home and Community Services 14,226,045 13,213,205
Interest 205,785 246,016
Total Expenses 41,519,849 42 672,724
Change in Net Position (2,800,3883) (5,607,140)
NET POSITION
Beginning, as reported 54,906,570 60,513,710
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (361,067) -
Beginning, as restated 54,545 503 60,513,710
Ending $ 51744620 $ 54,506,570




Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2015
Governmental Activities

Other Tax .
ltems Unrestricted
5% State Aid

3%

Non-Property Program
Taxes Revenues
12% 27%
Real Property
Taxes
53%
Expenses for Fiscai Year 2015
Governmental Activities
General
Hg;lth ]C:{ulturztgnd Government
Interest ecfirgo/ o1 Support
1% ¢ 16%
Economic
Opportunity
and
Development '
2% Transpoertation
22%

Public Safety _
6% Home and
Community

Services
34%

Governmental activities decreased the Town’s net position by $2,800,883 for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2015.

The decrease in net position of $2,800,883 is mostly relaied to depreciation expense of
$2.582,964, and net OPEB obligation of $2,810,000, totaling $5,302,964. These are non-cash
expenses and are not inciuded in the annual budget. Cash expenses included in the 2015
budget came in better than expected. Revenues increased by $1,653,382 and expenses
decreased by $1,152,875 compared to prior year.




Tax revenues decreased by $10,285 in 2015. Non property tax revenue or Saies Tax, also
decreased $83,665 over the prior year, while other tax items, which includes franchise fees,
increased by $120,197. Overall revenues of the Primary Government increased in 2015 by
$1,653,382. The largest increase in revenues for 2015 was in Operating grants and
Contributions, for $794,925. This was due to contributions from ConEd for paving and drainage
work, insurance recoveries, and FEMA reimbursements for the 2012 Super Storm Sandy.
Additionally, Mortgage Tax increased by $201,820 since 2014.

Expenses incurred by governmental activities of the Town totaled $41,519,849, a decrease of
$1,152,875. The largest component of these expenses are in the areas of Home and
Community Services (34%), Transportation (22%), General Government Support (16%) and
Culture and Recreation (16%).

Total expenses per the Statement of Activities decreased in 2015 by $1,152,875 helping to
offset the $2,800,883 decrease in the Town’s net position. Savings were seen in General
Government Support expenses, which decreased by $1,210,274, along with Transportation
expenses, which decreased by $1,303,191. However, Public Safety costs increased by
$13,383, Home and Community Services increased by $1,012,840, Heaith expenses increased
by $279,299 and Culture and Recreation costs went up by $188,061.

Although the net position decreased, the Town cut many costs. Savings were seen in the areas
of Transportation, Home and Community Services, Health, and Interest on debt.

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

It is important to note for this year's financial statement presentation that the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”} issued its Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, in February 2009. The requirements of GASB
Statement No. 54 are effective for financial statements for the Town’s fiscal period ending
December 31, 2012. GASB Statement No. 54 abandons the reserved and unreserved
classifications of fund balance and replaces them with five new classifications: nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the Town’s govermnmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for discretionary use as it represents the
portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by either
an external party, the Town itself, or an individual that has been delegated authority to assign
resources for use for particular purposes by the Town Board.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’'s governmental funds reported a combined

ending fund balance of $15,961,972, a decrease of $1,025,438 from the prior year. This is now
presented under GASB Statement No. 54, fund balance classifications. The non-spendable

10




fund balance component is $400,721, consisting of amounts representing prepaid expenditures
and inventories. Total assigned fund balance is $8,186,866, of which $1,922,000 has been
assigned for subsequent year's expenditures and represents the amount estimated for use in
the 2016 budget. An additional $400,000 has been assigned for future retirement contributions
to New York State, and another $455,914, is assigned for purchases on order. The remaining
assigned fund balance, $5,408,952, represents amounts intended for use in the Town Outside
Villages Fund, Highway Fund, Water Fund, and other special districts. Furthermore, $2,798,653,
constitutes unassigned fund balance, all of which is in the General Fund. The remainder of the
fund balance, $4,575,732 is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has already been committed to 1) capital projects, current and future, is $2,570,830,
2) a reserve for parklands is $22,839, 3) a reserve for debt service is $1,982,063.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the total fund balance of the General Fund was $4,180,258. Of this amount, $717,000
was assigned to be used in the 2016 fiscal year. As a measure of the General Fund liquidity, it
is useful to compare both the unassigned fund balance and the total fund balance to the
General Fund expenditures and transfers out. The unassigned fund balance represents 24%
and the total fund balance represents 35.75% of the General Fund expenditures and transfers
out. This amount of fund balance is maintained because of the Town's responsibility {o
guarantee the real property tax levy of other taxing jurisdictions (schooi districts, fire districts,
and Westchester County). '

The fund balance in the General Fund increased by $151,531, during the current fiscal year.
This is down $468.224 from the 2014 increase of $619,755. Part of the reason for this
decrease is due to the fact that property tax revenues were down by $653,655 even though
expenses decreased by $241,399. Non-property tax revenues, which is sales tax, decreased
by $108,665 and other tax items such as inferest and penalties and franchise fees, increased by
$49,828. Charges for Services decreased slightly, but combined other incomes increased by
$11,546. In addition, State and Federal Aid increased from 2014 by $120,526, mostly due to an
increase in morigage tax. While savings occurred in General Governmental Support,
Transportation and Employee Benefits all other General Fund expenses increased in 2015;
Public safety, Health, Economic opportunity and development, Culture and recreation, and
Home and community services.

The fund balance for the Town Outside Villages Fund increased by $114,848, during the
current fiscal year. Total revenues increased by $409,962 due to an increase in State Aid and
Unclassified income, due to a write off of old outstanding accounts payable. Total expenditures
and other financing uses decreased from the prior year by $11,605. Much of the decreased
expenses can be attributed to decreases in Judgements and claims and Culture and
Recreation. '

In the Highway Fund, the fund balance decreased by $424 806 in the current fiscal year. This
decrease is primarily due to severe weather conditions during the winter months of 2015. The
Town appropriated fund balance, increasing the original budget by $450,000 in order to cover
the costs of snow and ice removal. The Town also completed paving of roads and drainage
work which cost approximately $1,844,000. Drainage projects included Dickerson Road,
Cardozza Avenue and Rancho Drive. Additionally, the Town purchased four new plows and a
wood chipper. Even with these additional purchases the Highway Fund expenditures were
under the final budget by $184,025. Revenues came in over budget by $77,014, due to State
Emergency Management Assistance (SEMA) funds related to Super Storm Sandy in 2012.

The combined Special Districts Fund fund balance decreased by $197,262, in the current

fiscal year. Of this decrease $187,423, can be attributed to the Consolidated Water District
which funded the final payments for the water main replacement at Jerome and Rita Drives.
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Water rates to the consumer were not increased in 2015, but metered water sales increased by
$340,259. Water rent revenues came in over budget by $128,738. Water purchases from NYC
went up by $215,266, due to increased consumption and rate increases to cover future capital
improvements. The fund balance in Cortlandt Ambulance District #2 decreased by $14,445,
contributing to the decrease in fund balance for the combined Special Districts. This is partly
due to the additional per diem coverage for the paramedics.

The Capital Projects Fund had a decrease in fund balance of $248,194. Expenses were
attributable to the improvements at Lake Meahagh Park, the Verpltanck Nature Trail, and septic
cleaning and repair reimbursements in the watershed area. Transfers to capital were made from
the General Fund to cover the down payment on the purchase of the ConEd property in
Verplanck for $275,000, The Cortlandt Consolidated Water District transferred in $70,959 for the
Jerome and Rita Drive water main project, and the Town Outside Villages transferred in
$136,934 for the Verplanck Nature Trail.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues exceeded budgetary expectations by $806,127. Real property faxes came in
$120,059 over budgst despite lower collections in 2015 due to the tax overlay buiit into the
budget. Non-property tax revenues, such as sales tax, came in over budget by $737,662 as a
result of the Town’s election to keep the budgeted highway portion of $310,000 in the Town-
wide fund. !n the Town-wide fund, State Aid also came in over budget by $43,755 due to
Mortgage tax which came in higher in 2015 than the prior year by $201,820, due to a rebound in
the housing market. Federal Aid came in under budget by $140,000 due to a shift in funding for
Norwest Regional Services. Departmental income and interest income also came in under
budget by $185,929 due to a decrease in construction inspection fees and low interest rates.

Actual expenditures were $145,964 less than budget, excluding transfers out to other funds.
The difference between the original appropriations budget and the final amended budget was
$103,141. This change was attributable to Transportation, Economic opportunity and
development and Culture and Recreation for the purchase of a nutrition vehicle and increased
funding for the Drug Free Communities Grant.

Investment in Joint Venture

The Town of Cortlandt participates in the Northern Westchester Joint Water Works. The
purpose of the joint venture is to construct, maintain and operate a water filtration and
transmission system for its members. The Town has an equity interest in the joint venture of
30% or $5,427,493. :

Capital Assets

The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 31,
2015, amounted to $58,654,040 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure
and construction-in-progress. The Town has added the value of its infrastructure assets
constructed and acquired between the years 1980 and 2003, in accordance with accounting
requirements set by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #34.
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Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

2015 2014
Land $ 17463469 § 17,463,469
Buildings and Improvements 8,049,833 7,483,866
Machinery and Equipment 3,247,750 3,604,357
Construction-in-Progress 2,234 053 2,403,554
Infrastructure 27,658,935 28,834,324

Total $ 58654040 $ 59,789,570

The following highlights the amounts expended during the current fiscal year on major capital
assets:

s Completion of Lake Meahagh Park improvements
» Verplanck Nature Trail and Turtie Pond
» Repaving of Jerome and Rita Drive due to water main replacement

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total bonded debt outstanding of $86,371,000.
As required by New York State Law, all bonds issued by the Town are general obligation bonds,
backed by the full faith and credit of the Town.

During the 2015 fiscal year, the Town did not issue any new statutory installment bonds, but
paid $1,249,000 in principal on outstanding obligations.

Through sound financial management and manageable debt levels, the Town has been
successful in maintaining its high-grade rating for its general obligation bonds, currently rated
Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Service. '

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 of this report.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designhed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of this
information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Comptroller, Town of Cortlandt, 1 Heady Street, Cortlandt Manor, New York
10567. :
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables

Taxes, net

Accounts

State and Federal aid

Water rents

Due from other governmenis
Prepaid expenses
Investment in joint venture
Capital assets

Not being depreciated

Being depreciated, net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Bond interest and matured bonds payable
Due to school districts
Due to other governments
Qverpayments
Bond anticipation notes payable
Unearned revenues
Accrued interest payable
Non-current liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Capital projects
Debt service :
Future capital projects
Special districts
Water
Lighting
Sewer
Ambulance -
Parks
Drainage
Improvement
Parklands
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Activities

24,153,903

41,712,446
1,157,892
519,483
1,610,803
2,147 136
400,721
5,427,493

19,697,522
38,956,518

135,783 917

1,745,198

1,385,878
9,171
49,321,406
1,719
30,389
1,300,000
526,000
11,274

1,968,084
31,189,388

85,743,310

41,185

53,892,881

2,960,569
2,467,063
341,947

47,240
67,377
123,403
927,604
43,583
17,202
31,476
22 839
(9,198,564)

$

51,744,620




Towh of Cortlandt, New York

Statement of Activilies
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions

Governmental activities
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity

and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community
services
Interest

Total Govemmental
Activities ‘

$ 6,7066%4 $ 235,248 § 40,373 $ 275,000

2,651,572 716,196 106,552 -
1,117,634 177,086 275,309 -
9,187,620 18,509 741,585 93,937
844,603 - 85,926 -
6,579,896 1,260,10¢ 316,676 130,000
14,226,045 5,890,864 6,621 89,929

205,785 - 15,676 3,398

$ 41519849 % 8,2.98,012 $ 1,588,718 $ 592264

General revenues
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Payments in lisu of taxes
interest and penalties on real property taxes
Franchise fees
Non-property taxes - Non-property tax distribution from County
Unrestricted use of money and property
Unrestricted State aid
Miscellaneous
Insurance recoveries

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position

Net Position- Beginning, as reported
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

Net Pension- Beginning, as restated

Net Pension- Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position

(6,156,073)
(1,828,824)

(665,239)
(8,333,589)

(758,677)

(4,873,111)

(8,238,631)
(186,711)

(31,040,855)

20,463,864

760,987
667,590
378,299
4,512,662
7,015
1,239,051
199,111
11,393

28,239,972

(2,800,883)

54,906,570
(361,067)

54,545,503

51,744,620
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Taxes receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts

Other receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Water rents
Due from other governmenis
Due from other funds

‘Prepaid expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES '
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Bond interest and matured

bonds payable

Due to other funds

Due to school districts

Due to other governments

Overpayments

Bond anticipation notes payable

Uneamed revenues

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balancés

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

Town Outside

General Villages Highway
11861,109 $ 1,977.758 $  1693,925
41,712,446 ; ;
344430 165,802 41,484
6,535 - 345,473
1,338,028 90,545 .
345,390 ] 35,068
2,034,383 256,347 422,925
180,324 132,238 56,101
55788262 $ 2,366,343 $ 2,172,951
244675 § 220515 § 114319
13,563 4,792 345,468
49,321 406 } i
1,719 - ;
30,389 - -
- - 1,500
49611752 225307 461,287
1,996,252 ; ;
51,608,004 225,307 461,287
180,324 132,238 56,101
341,947 ) i
859,334 2 008,798 1,655,563
2,798 653 ] ]
4,180,258 2141 036 1,711,664
55788262 $ 2,366,343 $ 2,172,951

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Total

Special Capital Other Governmental
Districts Projects Governmental Funds

1,943,944 6,095,009 31,750 23,603,495

- - - 41,712,446

331,176 275,000 - 1,157,892

- 167,475 - 519,483

1,610,803 - - 1,610,803

718,563 - - 2,147,136

1,532,622 18,174 2,470,706 4 402,860

4,193,164 460,649 2,470,706 8,838,174

32,058 - - 400,721

6,169,166 6,555,658 2,502,456 75,554,836

758,137 40,754 - 1,378,400

- - 9,171 9,171

1,539,633 2,496,021 3,383 4,402,860

- - - 49,321,406

- - - 1,719

- - - 30,389

- 1,300,000 - 1,300,000

661,167 490,000 - 1,152,667

2,958,937 4,326,775 12,554 57,596,612

- - - 1,996,252

2,958,937 4,328,775 12,554 59,592,864

32,058 - - 400,721

- 2,228,883 2,004,902 4575732

3,178,171 - 485,000 8,186,866

- - - 2,798,653

3,210,229 2,228,883 2,489,902 15,961,972

$ 6,169,166 6,555,658 2,502,456 75,554,836
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet {o
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 15,961,872

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position
are Different Because
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 58,654,040
investment in joint venture : 5,427,493

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Real property taxes 1,996,252
Departmental income 626,667

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to the governmental funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service
Fund are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position _ (1,758,930)

Governmental funds do not report the effect of assets or liabilities related to net
pension assets (liabilities) whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the staterment of activities. '
Deferred amounts on net pension liabilities 1,704,013

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payable (11,274)

Bonds payable (6,371,000)
Compensated absences ' : : (2,210,584)
Claims payabie (122,084)

Net pension liability (1,411,945)

Other post employment benefit obhgations payabie {20,740,000)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 51,744,620

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2015

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Cther tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
Intergovernmerital charges
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance recoveries

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change iﬁ Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Town Qutside Special
General Villages Highway Districts
2999098 § 8,492,482 5911,380 §$ 2,729,600
1,808,876 - - -
3,737,662 775,000 - -
380,770 1,209,313 - 6,029,082
239,760 - 18,508 185,676
98,401 2,339 1,695 - 4184
283,196 - - -
1,555,255 108,582 449,095 -
143,525 - - -
145,339 142,960 280,715 -
11,389,883 10,730,676 6,671,384 8,958,542
4,941,333 156,978 - 74,630
109,456 1,517,806 - 627,593
32,500 15,797 - 1,069,337
383,575 - 5,607,557 107,970
674,003 - - -
2,157,874 2,467,346 - -
17,200 3,830,680 - 5,666,652
3,025,489 2,485,495 1,435,292 623,123
- - - 5,505
11,341,430 10,474,102 7,042,849 8,174,810
48,453 256,574 {371,455) 783,732
11,393 - - 275,309
446,116 - 14,500 472,500
{354,431) {141,726) ~ (67,851) (1,728,803)
103,078 (141,726) (53,351) (980,994)
151,531 114,848 (424,808) (197,262)
4028727 2,026,188 2,136,470 3,407 491
4 180,258 $ 2,141,036 1711664 3 3,210,229

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

20




Total
Capital Other Governmental
Projects Governmental Funds

- 3 - § 20,132,561

- - 1,806,876

- - 4 512,662

- 66,000 7,685,165

- - 453,945

- 3,440 110,059

- - 283,196

89,929 - 2,202,861
223,937 - 367,462
275,000 - 854,014

588,866 59,440 38,408,801

- - 5,172,841
- - 2,254 855
- - 1,117,634
- - 8,099,102
- - 674,003
- - 4,625,220
- - 9,514,532
- - 7,569,399

- 1,249,000 1,249,000
. - 204,035 209,540
1,234,715 - 1,234,715

1,234,715 1,453,035 39,720,941

(645,849) (1,383,595) (1,312,140)

- - 286,702
433,335 1,463,604 2,830,055
(36,680) (500,564) (2,830,055)

396,655 963,040 286,702

(249,194) (420,555) (1,025,438)

2,478,077 2,910,457 16,987,410

2,228,883 § 2489902 § 15,861,972
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Town of Cortiandt, New York

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays and amounts paid to joint ventures as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, these costs are ailocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay expenditures
Depreciation expense
Investment in joint venture

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. '
Real property taxes
Intergovernmental charges

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
_issuing debt increases long-term iabilities in the statement of net position. Repay-
ment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repay-

- ment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Principal paid on bonds

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. ' '

Accrued interest

Compensated absences

Pension assets (liabilities)

Claims '

Other post employment benefit obligations

' Internal service funds are used by management io charge the cost of risk to
individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds are reported
with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(1,025,438)

1,447 434
(2,582,964)
(51,821)

(1,187,351)

331,303
(180,000)

151,303

1,249,000

3,755
167,180
653,135

15,484
(2,810.000)

(1,970,446)

(17,951)

(2,800,883)




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Siatement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General, Town Outside Villages, Highway and Sgecial Districts Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2015

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmentat income
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures

State ad

Federal aid

Miscellanecus

Total Revenuss

EXPENDITURES
Cument
General government support
Public safety
Heakh
Transportation
Economic opportunity
and development
Cuiture and recreation
Home and community
services
Employse benefits
Debt service
interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Rev-

enues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)

Insurance recoveries
Transfers in
Transfers cut

Total Cther Financing. Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of Year

End of Year

General Fund

Town Cutside Villages Fund

Variance with Varance with
Final Budget Final Budget
Original Final Positive Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
2679040 $ 2879040 5 2809000 § 120,058 § 54917288 8491288 § B492482 § 1,194
1,659250 1,659,250 1,806,876 147,626 - - - . -
3,000.000 3,000,000 3,737,662 757,662 775,000 775,000 775,000 -
520,100 520,100 3_80,770 (139,330) 1,110,500 1,110,600 1,208,313 88,613
231,288 231,288 238,760 5,472 - - - -
145,000 145,000 98,401 {456,599) 15,000 15,000 2,339 (12,661}
200,000 200,000 283,195 83,196 - - - -
1,511,500 1,511,500 1,555,285 43,755 - 78,000 108,582 30,582
256,262 283,667 143,525 {140,142} - - - -
128,000 153,911 145,339 8,572) 60,415 60,415 142,960 82,545
10,531,440 10,583,756 11,389,883 806,127 10,452,202 10,530,203 10,730,676 200,473
5,020,365 5,007,834 4,941,333 66,501 372,598 160,534 156,978 3,556
133,027 115,027 109,456 5,571 1,384,956 1,544,345 1,517,806 23,539
30,000 32,500 32 500 - 16,315 15,315 15,797 518 -
324,984 383,842 383,575 267 - - - -
621,606 685,641 574,003 11,638 - - - -
2,088,771 2213278 2,157 874 55,402 2,525,581 2,520,788 2,467,346 53,443
14,500 17,900 17,200 700 3,860,662 4,063 531 3,830,680 232,851
3,181,000 3,031,374 3,025,489 5,885 2,576,000 2,508,806 2,485,495 21,311
11,384,253 - 11,487,384 11,341,430 145,864 10,736,112 10,809,320 10,474,102 335,218
(852,813) {903,638) 48,453 ¢52,091 {283,909) (279,117} 256,574 535,691
- - 11,393 11,393 - - - -
435,600 436,205 446,116 9,911 - - - -
(332,229) (354,434} (354,431) 3 - 141,728) (141,726) -
102,771 81,771 103,078 21,307 - (141,726} (141,728) -
(750,042) (821,867) 151,531 973,398 {283,909) (420,843) 114,848 536,691
750,042 821,867 4028727 3,206,860 283,909 420 843 2,026,188 1,605,345
- % - 4§ 4180258 § 4180258 § - - 0§ 2141036 $ 2141036

The notes o the financial staiements are an integral part of this statement.
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Highway Fund Spegial Districts Fund
Variance with Variance with
Final Budget Final Budget
Qriginal Final Positive Original Final Posttive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
£811,380 $ 5911380 $ 5911380 3 - 2,728,243 B 2729243 § 2729800 % 357
310,000 310,000 - (310,0G0) - - - -
- - - - 5,033,459 5,840,836 6,029,082 188,246
22,000 22 000 18,509 (3,481} 196,100 196,100 185,676 (424)
10,000 10,000 1,685 {8,305) 5,000 5,000 4,184 {816)
300,000 300,000 449 065 149,005 - - - -
41,600 41,000 280,718 249,715 - - - -
6,594 380 6,594,380 5,671,384 77.014 7,963,802 8,771,179 $,958,542 187,363
- - - - 163,280 77,571 74,630 291
- - - - 610,304 616,444 627,593 {11,149)
- - - - 531,886 1,130,763 1,069,337 61,426
5,200,374 5,773,149 5,607,557 165,592 107,500 107,843 107,970 27
- - - - 4,701,872 5,787,236 5,666,652 120,584
1,578,500 1,453,725 1,435,292 18,433 620,300 623,129 623,123 &
- - - - 30,000 5505 5,505 -
6,776,874 7226 B74 7,042 848 184,025 7,085,153 8,348,581 8174810 173781
(182,484) (632,484) (371,455} 261,039 898,649 422 588 783,732 361,144
- - R - - ~ 275,309 275,308
14,500 14,500 14,500 - 468 500 488,500 472,500 4,000
(67,852) (67,852) (67,851) 1 (1,814,721) {1,728,803) (1,728,808) -
(53,352) {53 352} (53,351) ) {1 146,221) (1,260,303} (980,994) 278,309
{235,848} (685,5848) {424,806) 261,040 (247,572} (837,715) (197,262) 640,453
235846 685,846 2,136,470 1,450,624 247 572 837,716 3,407,491 2,568,776
- 8 - 3 1711664 § 1,711,664 - 8 - 3 3210228 % 3,210,229
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“ Town of Cortlandt, New York

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund - Workers' Compensation Benefits Fund
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 550,408
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 7,478
Current portion of claims payable 580,000
Total Current Liabilities 587,478
Claims payable, less current portion 1,721,860
Total Liabilities 2,309,338
NET POSITION
Unrestricted $ (1,758,930)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund - Workers' Compensation Benefits Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended December 31, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee benefits

Loss from Operations

NOM-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest income

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year

End of Year

The rotes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

610,000

628,301

(18,301)

350

(17,951)

(1,740,979)

$

(1,758,930)




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund - Workers' Compensation Benefits Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from charges for services $ 610,000

Cash payments to insurance carriers and claimants : (486,725)
Net Cash From Operating Activities 123,273

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income 350
Net Change in Cash and Equivalents 123,625

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of Year ' S 426,783

End of Year $ 550,408

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations $ (18,301)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to '
net cash from operating activities
Changes in asseis and liabilities

Accounts payable 902
Claims payable : 140,674
Net Cash From Operating Activities _ $ 123,275

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Cortlandt, Mew York

Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2015

Pension
Agency Trust
Fund Fund
ASSETS ‘
Cash and equivalents $ 1,122,331 § -
Investments, at fair value _
Short term investments _ - 62,502
U.S. government agencies - 5,357
Corporate bonds - 45 835
Common stock - 274,412
Mutual funds - 207,148
- 595,254
Accounts receivable : _ - - 37,000
Total Assets 1,122,331 632,254
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 271,699 -
Empioyee payroli deductions , 49,190 -
Deposits ' 801,442 -
Total Liabilities 1,122,331 -
NET POSITION
Held in trust for ,
pension benefits. - $ - - % 632,254

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Statement of Changes in Net Position

Fiduciary Funds

Pension Trust Fund - Ambulance Service Awards Program
Year Ended December 31, 2015

ADDITIONS
Pension contributions
Investment income

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits
Administrative costs

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

- NET POSITION
Beginning of Year

End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.
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¥

36,929
11,091

47,980

18,102
2,916

21,018

26,962

605202

$

632,254




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Cortlandt, New York (“Town”) was established in 1788 and operates in accordance with Town
Law and the various other applicable laws of the State of New York. The Town Board is the legislative
body responsible for overall operation. The Town Supervisor serves as the chief executive officer and the
Town Comptroller serves as the chief financial officer. The Town provides the following services to its
residents: public safety, health, transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and
recreation, home and community services and general and administrative support.

‘The accounting policies of the Town conform to generally accepted accounting principies as applicable to
governmental units and the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the State of New York. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is @ summary of the
Town's more significant accounting policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government which is the Town, b)
organizations for which the Town is financially accountable and ¢) other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the Town are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth by GASB.

In evaluating how to define the Town, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the Town's
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by GASB, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency and financial accountability. Based upon the application of these criteria, there are no
other entities which would be included in the financial statements.

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the effect
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements, except for interfund services
provided and used.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Town at the end of its fiscal
year. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods or services, or privileges provided by
a given function or segment, (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment and (3) interest earned on
grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items not
identified as program revenues are reported as general revenues. The Town does not allocate
indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary

funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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Town of Cortiandf, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-cperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary funds principal on-going operation. The principal operating revenue of the Internal
Service Fund is charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the Internal Service
Fund include benefit costs. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

C. Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the Town are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts which comprise its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund
balances/net position, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance
with finance related legal and contractual provisions. The Town maintains the minimum number
of funds consistent with legal and managerial requirements. The focus of governmental fund
financial statements is on major funds as that term is defined in professional pronouncements.
Each maijor fund is to be presented in a separate column, with non-major funds, if any,
aggregated and presented in a single column. Proprietary and Fiduciary funds are reported by
type. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus
and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental activities column, a
reconciliation is presented on the pages following, which briefly explain the adjustments
necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental activities
column of the government-wide presentation. The Town's resources are reflected in the fund
financial statements in three broad fund categories, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles as follows:

Fund Categories

a. Governmental Eunds - Governmental Funds are those through which most general
government functions are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of
expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
governmental funds. The following are the Town's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary fund of the Town and is
used to account for and report ali financial resources not accounted for and reported
in another fund. :

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
The major special revenue funds of the Town are as follows:

Town Outside Villages Fund - The Town Outside Villages Fund is used fo
account for transactions which by statute affect only those areas outside the
boundaries of the villages located within the Town. The major revenues of
this fund are real property taxes, non-property taxes and departmental
income.
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Town of Corilandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31. 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Highway Fund - The Highway Fund is used to account for road and bridge
maintenance and improvements as defined in the Highway Law of the State
of New York. The major revenues of this fund are reat property taxes and
State aid.

Special Districts Fund - The Special Districts Fund is provided to account for
the operation and maintenance of the Town's fire protection, water, lighting,
sewer, ambulance, park, drainage and improvement districts. The major
revenues of this fund are real property taxes and departmental income.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and
other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds.

The Town also reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Fund - Special Purpose Fund - The Special Purpose Fund
~ is used to account for assets held by the Town in accordance with the terms
of a trust agreement.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditures for principal and interest and for financial resources that are
being accumulated for principal and interest maturing in future years.

b. Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds include an internal service fund. Internal
service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or
agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement
hasis. The Town has established its Workers’ Compensation Benefits Fund as an
internal service fund.

c. Fidugiary Funds (Not Inciuded in Government-Wide Financial Statements) - The
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in an agency
capacity on behalf of others. These include Pension Trust and Agency funds. The
Pension Trust Fund is provided to account for the Town's Ambulance Service
Awards Program. The Agency Fund is used to account for employee payroll tax
withholdings and other deposits that are payable to other jurisdictions or individuals.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured
such as current financial resources (current assets less current liabilities) or economic resources
(all assets and liabilities). The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for
recognition in the financial statements.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)
December 31, 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the Pension Trust and Intemal
Service funds. The Agency Fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. Property taxes are considered to be available if coliected within sixty days of the
fiscal year end. A ninety day availability period is generally used for revenue recognition for most
other governmental fund revenues. Property taxes associated with the current fiscal period as well
as charges for services and intergovemmental revenues are considered to be susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Fees and other similar
revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in
cash. If expenditures are the prime factor for determining eligibility, revenues from Federal and
State grants are accrued when the expenditure is made. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, net pension liability, other post-employment benefit
obligations and certain claims are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/inflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund
Balances

Deposits, Investments and Risk Disclosure

Cash and Equivalents - Césh and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand
deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with original maturities of
less than three months. ' :

The Town's investment policies are governed by State statutes. The Town has adopted its
own written investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured
commercial banks or frust companies located within the State. The Town is authorized to
use demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit.
Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies,
repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of
deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The Town has
entered into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These
agreements authorize the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such obligations
include, among other instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipal and school district subdivisions.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may
not be retumed to it. GASB Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be disclosed as
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are either uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial
institution or collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial instituion’s trust
department but not in the Town’s name. The Town’s aggregate bank balances that were
not covered by depository insurance were not exposed to custodial credit risk at December
31, 2015.

The Town was invested only in the above mentioned obligations and, accordingly, was not
exposed to any interest rate risk or credit risk.

Investments - Investments of the Pension Trust Fund are stated at fair value. The

amounts are invested in various portfolios by the trustee of the Fund, who has been
- designated by the State Comptroller. These investments are unrated. The Town has no

formal policy relating to interest rate or credit risk for Pension Trust Fund investments.

‘Taxes Receivable - Real property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real property and are
levied on January 1st. The Town collects county, town, highway and special district taxes which are
due April 1st and payable without penaity to April 30th. School districts taxes for the period July 1
to June 30" are levied on July 1st and are due on September 1st with the first half payable without
penalty until September 30th and the second half payable without penalty until January 31st. The
Town guarantees the full payment of the county and school districts warrants and assumes the
responsibility for uncollected taxes. The Town also has the responsibility for conducting in-rem
foreclosure proceedings.

The Town functions in both a fiduciary and guarantor relationship with the County of Westchester
and the various school districts located within the Town with respect to the collection and payment
of real property taxes levied by such jurisdictions. County taxes are included in the Town's levy and
are payable without penalty for thirty days. The County Charter provides for the Town to collect
County and school districts taxes and remit them as collected to the respective municipality.
However, the Town must remit to the County sixty percent of the amount levied by May 25th and
the balance of forty percent on October 15th. With respect to school districts taxes, the Charter
provides that the Town satisfy the warrant of each school district by Aprit 5th. Thus, the Town's
fiduciary responsibility is from the date of the levy until the due date of the respective tax warrant at
which time the Town must satisfy its obligations to the municipalities regardless of the amounts
collected. The County tax warrant is due in October and uncollected County taxes have been
accounted for in a manner similar to Town taxes. The collection of school districts taxes is deemed
a financing transaction until the warrants are satisfied.

Other Receivables - Other receivables include amounts due from other govemments and
individuals for services provided by the Town. Receivables are recorded and revenues are
recognized as eamned or as specific program expenses/expenditures are incurred. Allowances are
recorded when appropriate.

Due From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the Town has numerous
transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services and construct assets. To the
extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of December 31,
2015, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the fund financial
statements.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventory - There are no inventory values presented in the balance sheets of the respective funds
of the Town. Purchases of inventoriable items at various locations are recorded as expenditures at
the time of purchase and year-end balances at these locations are not material.

Prepaid Expenses/Expenditures - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods, and are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption methed in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid expenses/expenditures consist of costs
which have been satisfied prior to the end of the fiscal year, but represent amounts which have
been provided for in the subsequent years budget and/or will benefit such periods. Reported
amounts in governmental funds are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance, in the fund
financial statements, which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available spendable
resources” even though they are a component of current assets.

investment in Joint Venture - The Town, together with the Towns of Yorktown and Somers and
the Montrose Improvement District, participate in the Northern Westchester Joint Water Works (a
joint venture). The purpose of the joint venture is to construct, maintain and operate a water works
transmission system for its members. The Town is required to fund its share of the construction
costs and will retain an equivalent equity interest in the physicai plant and its operations.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the governmental activities
column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities), the Town chose to include all such items acquired since 1980. The Town
was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through backtrending
(i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using an
appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition
year).

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the vaiue of the asset or materially
extend assets lives is not capitalized.

Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated.  Property, plant, equipment'and
infrastructure of the Town are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives.

Life
Ciass in Years
Buildings and improvements 20-40
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Infrastructure 20-50
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The costs associated with the acquisition or construction of capital assets are shown as capital
outlay expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are not
shown on the governmental fund balance sheet.

Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria has been satisfied. In govermnment-wide financial statements, unearned
revenues consist of amounts received in advance and/or grants received before the eligibility
requiremenis have been met.

Unearned revenues in fund financial statements are those where asset recognition criteria have
been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The Town has reported
uneamed revenues of $1,500 for fees received in advance in the Highway Fund, $626,667 for debt
service requirements due from cther governments and $25,000 for a donation received in advance
in the Special Districts Fund - Consolidated Water Districi, $9,500 for fees received in advance in
the Special Districts Fund - Country Woods Sewer District and $490,000 for grants received in
advance in the Capital Projects Fund. Such amounts have been deemed to be measurable but not
"avaitable" pursuant to generally accepted accounting principies.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenselexpenditure) untii then.

In addition to fiabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) untii that time.

The Town reported deferred inflows of resources of $1,9986,252 for real pmpérty taxes in the
General Fund. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
that the amounts become available.

The Town also reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in relation
to its pension obligations. These amounts are detailed in the discussion of the Town’s pension
plans in Note 3F.

Long-Term Liabilities - In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
expended as incurred.

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other-
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
Capital Projects Fund expenditures.
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Compensated Absences - The various collective bargaining agreements provide for the
payment of accumulated vacation and sick leave upon separation from service. The liability for
such accumulated leave is reflected in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets as current
and long-term liabilities. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if
the liability has matured through employee resignation or retirement. The liability for
compensated absences includes salary related payments, where applicable.

Net Pension Liability (Asset) - The net pension liability (asset) represenis the Town's
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) of the New York State and Local Employees’
Retirement System and the New York State Local Police and Fire Retirement System. The
financial reporting of these amounts are presented in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” and GASB Statement No. 71,
“Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date”.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabiliies and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted
by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. Net position on the Statement of Net Position includes, net
invested in capital assets, restricted for capital projects, debt service, future capital projects,
special districts and special purpose. The balance is classified as unrestricted.

Fund Balances - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets and
deferred outflows of resources and current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. In the
fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Under this standard the fund
balance classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not
in spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term receivables, advances) or they are
legally or contractually required o be maintained intact (the corpus of a permanent fund).

Restricted fund balance is reported when constraints placed on the use of the resources are
imposed by grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law
through enabling legislation. Enabling legislation includes a legally enforceable requirement that
these resources be used only for the specific purposes as provided in the legisiation. This fund
balance classification is used to report funds that are restricted for debt service obligations and
for other items contained in General Municipal Law of the State of New York.

Committed fund balance is reported for amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to formal action of the entity’s highest level of decision making authority. The Town
Board is the highest level of decision making authority for the Town that can, by the adoption of a
resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, these funds
may only be used for the purpose specified unless the Town Board removes or changes the
purpose by taking the same action that was used to establish the commitment. This
classification includes certain amounts established and approved by the Town Board.
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Assigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts constrained either by policies
of the Town Board for amounts assigned for balancing the subsequent year's budget or the
Town Supervisor for amounts assigned for encumbrances. Unlike commitments, assignments
generally only exist temporarily, in that additional action does not normally have to be taken for
the removal of the assignment. An assignment cannot result in a deficit in the unassigned fund
balance in the General Fund. Assigned fund balance in all other governmental funds represents
any positive remaining amount after classifying nonspendable, restricted or committed fund
balance amounts.

Unassigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts not classifled as
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. The General Fund is the only fund that would
report a positive amount in unassigned fund balance. For all governmental funds other than the
General Fund, unassigned fund balance would necessarily be negative, since the fund’s liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, together with amounts already classified as nonspendable,
restricted and committed would exceed the fund’s assets and deferred outflows of resources.

In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted and unrestricted fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied. When both restricted and unrestricted
amounts of fund balance are available for use for expenditures incurred, it is the Town's policy to

© use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted
amounts of fund balance, it is the Town's policy to use fund baiance in the following order:
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

F. Encumbrances

In governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
General, Town Outside Villages, Highway and Special Districts funds. Encumbrances outstanding
at year-end are generally reported as assigned fund balance since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities. :

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates
also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H. Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial
statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date is
June 2, 2016.

38



Town of Cortlandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2015

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. Budgetary Data

The Town generalty follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

a)

b)

a)

)

K)

Prior to October 20th, the head of each administrative unit shall submit to the budget
officer an estimate of revenues and expendltures for such administrative unit for the
ensuing year.

The budget officer, upon completion of the review of the estimates, shall prepare a
tentative budget and file such budget in the office of the Town Clerk on or before
October 30th. :

On or before November 10th, the Town Clerk shall present the tentative budget to

the Town Board.

The Town Board shall review the tentative budget and may make such changes,
alterations and revisions as it shall consider advisable and which are consistent with
law. Upon completion of such review, the tentative budget and any modifications as
approved by the Town Board shall become the preliminary budget.

On or before December 10th, the Town Board shall hold a public hearing on the
preliminary budget.

After the public hearing, the Town Board may further change alter and revise the
preliminary budget subject to provisions of the law.

The preliminary budget as submitted or amended shall be adopted by resolution not
later than December 20th.

Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control
device for General, Town Outside Vilages, Highway, Special Districts and Debt
Service funds.

Budgets for General, Town Outside Villages, Highway, Special Districts and Debt
Service funds are legally adopted annually on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. The Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on a project
basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the Proprietary and Special Purpose
funds.

The Town Board has established legal control of the budget at the function level of
expenditures. Transfers between appropriation accounts, at the function level,
require approval by the Board. Any madification to appropriations resulting from an
increase in revenue estimates or supplemental reserve appropriations also require a
majority vote by the Board.

Appropriations in General, Town Outside Villages, Highway, Special Districts and
Debt Service funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year, except that outstanding
encumbrances are reappropriated in the succeeding year pursuant to the Uniform
System of Accounts promulgated by the Office of the State Comptroller.
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Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Town Board.
B. Property Tax Limitation

The Town is not limited as o the maximum amount of real property taxes which may be raised.
However, on June 24, 2011, the Governor signed Chapter 97 of the Laws of 2011 (“Tax Levy
Limitation Law™). This applies to all local governments.

The Tax Levy Limitation Law restricts the amount of real property taxes that may be levied by a
Town in a particular year. The original legislation that established the Tax levy Limitation Law was
set to expire on June 16, 2016. Chapter 20 of the Laws of 2015 extends the Tax Levy Limitation
Law through June 2020. '

The following is a brief summary of certain relevant provisions of the Tax Levy Limitation Law.
The summary is not complete and the full text of the Tax Levy Limitation Law should be read in
order to understand the details and implementations thereof.

The Tax Levy Limitation Law imposes a limitation on increases in the real property tax levy,
subject to certain exceptions. The Tax Levy Limitation Law permits the Town to increase its
overall real property tax levy over the tax levy of the prior year by no more than the “Aliowable
Levy Growth Factor,” which is the lesser of one and two-one hundredths or the sum of one plus
the Inflation Factor; provided, however that in no case shall the levy growth factor be less than
one. The “Inflation Factor” is the quotient of. (i) the average of the 20 National Consumer Price
Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period
ending six months prior to the start of the coming fiscal year minus the average of the National
Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-
month period ending six months prior to the start of the prior fiscal year, divided by (ii) the
average of the National Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States with the result
expressed as a decimal to four places. The Town is required to calculate its tax levy limit for the
upcoming year in accordance with the provision above and provide all refevant information to the
New York State Comptroller prior to adopting its budget. The Tax Levy Limitation Law sets forth
certain exclusions to the real property tax levy limitation of the Town, including exclusions for
certain portions of the expenditures for retirement system contributions and tort judgments
payable by the Town. The Town Board may adopt a budget that exceeds the tax levy limit for the
coming fiscal year, only if the Town Board first enacts, by a vote of at least sixty percent of the
total voting power of the Town Board, a local law to override such limit for such coming fiscal
year.

C. Fund Deficits
The following funds reflect deficits as of December 31, 2015:

Special Districts Fund

Mt. Airy Quaker Bridge Fire Protection District $ 26,197

Continental Village Fire Protection District 3,675

Montrose Lighting District 10,226
Internal Service Fund

Workers Compensation Benefits Fund 1,758,930

The Town will address these deficits in the ensuing year.
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The deficits in individual capital projects arise, in-part, because of the application of generally
accepted accounting principles to the financial reporting of such funds. The proceeds of bond
anticipation notes issued to finance construction of capital projects are not recognized as an “other
financing source”. Liabilities for bond anticipation notes are accounted for in the Capital Project
Fund. Bond anficipation notes- are recognized as revenue only to the extent that they are
redeemed. These deficits will be reduced and eliminated as bond anticipation notes are redeemed
from interfund transfers from other governmental funds or converted to permanent financing. Other
deficits, where no bond anticipation notes were issued or outstanding to the extent of the project
deficits, arise because of expenditures exceeding current financing on the projects. These deficits
will be eliminated with the subsequent receipt or issuance of authorized financing. ‘

Expenditures in Excess of Budget

The following categories of expenditures exceeded their budgetary provisions by the amounts
indicated: '

Special Districts Fund
Public Safety $ 11,149
Transportation 27

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 68,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” and GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date”. These statements seek
to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions by
establishing standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflowsf/inflows of
resources and expenses/expenditures. These statements also require the identification of the
methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected
benefit payments to their actuarial present value and attribute that present value to the periods of
employee ‘sérvice. As a result of adopting these standards, the govemnment-wide financial
statements reflect a cumulative effect for the change in accounting principle of $361,067.

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

A,

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

Town and County taxes - Current $ 461,452
School districts taxes - Current 39,454 262
Taxes receivable - Overdue 2,561,527
Property acquired for taxes 692,214
43,169,455

Allowance for uncollectible taxes {1,457 .009)
$ 41712446
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School districts taxes are offset by liabilities to the school districts which wili be paid no later than
April 5, 2016. Taxes receivable are also partially offset at the fund level by deferred tax revenues of
$1,996,252, which represents an estimate of the receivable which will not be collected within the
first sixty days of the subsequent year.

B. Due From/To Other Funds

The balances reflected as due fromfto other funds at December 31, 2015 were as follows:

: Due Due
Fund " From To
General $ 345390 § 13,563
Town Qutside Villages - 4,792
Highway 35,968 345,468
Special Districts 1,532,622 1,538,633
Capital Projects 18,174 2,496,021
Non-Major Governmental 2,470,706 3,383

- $ 4402860 $ 4402860

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that
1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions
are recorded in the accounting system and 3) payments between funds are made.

C. Investment in Joint Venture

The Town participates in the Northermn Westchester Joint Water Works. The purpose of the joint
venture is to construct, maintain and operate a water works transmission system for its members.
The Town has an equity interest in the joint venture of 30%.

The foliowing is an audited summary of financial information included in the financial statements of
the joint venture. Copies of the financial statements can be requested from the Northem
Waestchester Joint Water Works located at 2065 East Main Street, Cortlandt Manor, New York

10567.
Total Assets $ 22,010,995
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 342 467
Total Liabilities 4,228,901
Deferred Inflows of Resources 32,917
Total Equity 18,091,644
Total Operating Revenues 10,962,817
Total Non-Operating Revenues 31,191
Total Expenses 11,074,685
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D. Capital Assets

Changes in the Town’s capital assets are as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, _ December 31,
2015 Additions Deletions 2015
Capital Assets, not being depreciated _
Land ' $ 17.463469 3 - § - 3 17,463,469
Construction-in-progress 2,403,564 601,091 770,592 2,234,053
Total Capital Assets, not
being depreciated $ 19,867,023 $ 601,001 § 770,502 § 19,697,522
Capital Assets, being depreciated -
Buildings and improvements s 17,152,474 $ 1,007,816 $ - $ 18,159,990
Machinery and equipment 13,432,574 147,063 136,392 13,443,235
infrastructure 69,566,832 462,066 : - 70,028,898
Total Capital Assets, :
being depreciated 100,151,580 1,616,935 136,392 101,632,123
Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 9,668,308 441 848 - 10,110,157
Machinery and equipment 9,828,217 503,660 136,392 10,195,485
infrastructure 40,732,508 1,637,456 - 42 369963
Tatal Accumulated )
Depreciation 50,229,033 2,582,964 136,392 62,675,605
Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated, nat $ 39922547 $  (966,029) $ - $ 38956518
Capital Assets, net $ 59789570 § (364,938) $ 770592 % 58,654,040
Depreciation expense was charged to the Town’s functions and programs as follows:
General Government Support $ 48,596
Public Safety 82,434
Transportation 869,381
- Culture and Recreation 410,533
Home and Community Services 172,020
~ Total Depreciation Expense $ 2582964
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E.

Purpose

Short-Term Capital Borrowings

The schedule below details the changes in short-term capital borrowings.

Year of Balance Baiance
Criginal Maturity Rate of January 1, MNew December 31,
issue Date Inierest 2015 issues Redempticns 2015

Continental Village Water Main Replacement 2013 10/14/16 103% $ 600,000 % - % 50,000 § 550,000
Sprout Brook Park All-Purpose Ball Fields 2015 12122116 1.15 - 750,000 - - 750,000

$ 600,000 $ 750000 § 50,000 $ 1,300,000

Liabilities for bond anticipation notes are generally accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund.
Bond anticipation notes issued for judgments or setfled claims are recorded in the fund paying the
claim. Principal payments on bond anticipation notes must be made annually. State law requires
that bond anticipation notes issued for capital purposes or judgments be converted to long-term
obligations generally within five years after the original issue date. However, bond anticipation
notes issued for assessable improvement projects may be renewed for periods equivalent fo the
maxirmum fife of the permanent financing, provided that stipulated annual reductions of principal are
made.

Interest expenditures of $5,505 were recorded in the Consolidated Water District within the Special
Districts Fund. Interest expense of $6,948 was recorded on the government wide financial
statements.

Long-Term Liabilities

The following table summarizes changes in the Town's long-term liabilities for the year ended
December 31, 2015:

Cumulative :
Effect of Balance
Balance Change in January 1, Maturities Balance
January 1, Accounting - 2015 New Issues/ and/or December 31, Pue Within
2015 Principle As Restated Additions Paymenis 2015 One Year
Bonds Payable
Capital Construction $ 4645000 3 - $ 4645000 3 - % 574000 $ 4,071,000 $ 340,000
Other 2,975,000 - 2,975,000 - - 675,000 2,300,000 705,000
7,620,000 ) - 7,620,000 - 1,249,000 6,371,000 1,045,000
Other Non-current Liabilities
Compensated Absences 2,377,764 - 2,377,764 70,820 238,000 2,210,584 221,000
Net Pension Liability - 1,888,667 1,888,667 - 476,722 1,411,945 -
Claims Payable 2,298,754 - 2,298,754 942,692 817,602 2,423,944 702,084
Other Post Employment ) -
Benefit Obligaticns Payable 17,930,000 - 17,930,000 4,810,000 2,000,000 20,740,000 -
Total Other Non-
Current Liabilities 22,606,518 1,888,667 24,495,185 5,823,512 3,632,224 26,786,473 923,084

Total Long-Term Liabilities § 30226518 $ 1888667 $ 32115185 § 5823512 § 4781224 § 33,157,473 $ 1,968,084

Each governmental funds' liability for compensated absences, net pension liability, other post
employment benefit obligations and claims is liquidated by the General, Town Outside Villages,
Highway and Special Districts funds. The liability for bonds is liquidated by the Debt Service
Fund, which is funded by transfers from other funds.
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Bonds Payable

Bonds payable at December 31, 2015 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Amount
QOutstanding
Original at

Year of issue . Final Interest December 31,

Purpose Issue Amount Maturity Rates 2015
Joint Venture 1998 $ 4,630,000 June, 2018 2307-3283% $ 1,905,000
Joint Venture 1998 810,000 April, 2019 1.915-2.255 395,000
Public Improvements 1999 2,200,000 November, 2019 5.375-5.600 240,000
Public lmprovements 2004 1,950,000 December, 2024 3.500-4.125 985,000
Sewer Improvements 2009 390,000 September, 2019 3.800 141,000
Public improvements 2010 3,352,000 June, 2030 1.750 - 4.000 : 2,705,000
$ 6,371,000

interest expenditures of $204,035 were recorded in the fund financial statements in the Debt
Service Fund. Interest expense of $198,837 was recorded in the govermment-wide financial -
statements for governmental activities.

Payments to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of December 31, 2015
including interest payments of $1,037,373 are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, Principal Interest . . Total

2016 $ 1,045000 $ 193,205 $ 1,238,205
2017 1,080,000 162,108 1,242,108
2018 ' 1,115,000 127,277 1,242,277
2019 466,000 99,752 565,752
2020 270,000 84,225 _ 354,225

2021-2025 ‘ 1,545,000 313,563 1,858,563

2026-2030 - 850,000 57,243 907,243

$ 6,371,000 $ 1,037,373 § 7,408,373

The above general obligation bonds are direct obligations of the Town for which its full faith and
credit are pledged and are payable from iaxes levied on all taxable real property within the Town.

Compensated Absences

In accordance with existing collective bargaining agreements, employees are entitled to accumulate
up to 180 days of sick leave. Upon retirement, employees will be compensated for this
accumulated sick Jeave at the rate of 25% for the first sixty days, 33 1/3% for the second sixty days
and 50% for the third sixty days. Vacation time earned during the fiscal year can be carried over to
the succeeding year, subject to the limitations as provided in the respective collective bargaining
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agreements. The value of the compensated absences has been reflected in the government-wide
financial statements.

Pension Plans
New York State and Local Retirement System

The Town participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (“ERS")
which is referred to as the New York State and Local Retirement System (*System”). These are
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The System provides retirement
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the System is held in the
New York State Common Retirement Fund (“Fund”), which was established to hold ali net assets
and record changes in plan net position. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the
trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the System. The Comptroller is an elected
official determined in a direct statewide election and serves a four year term. Obligations of
employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law (“NYSRSSL"). Once a public employer elects to
participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides
that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or
impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State statute. The
Town also participates in the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan, which provides death
benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is included in the State’s financial report as a
pension trust fund. That report, including information with regard to benefits provided may be
found at www.osc.state.ny. us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3% of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees who joined on
or after January 1, 2010, who generally contribute between 3% and 6% of their salary for their
entire length of service. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies
the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based
on salaries paid during the System’s fiscal year ending March 31. The employer contribution
rates for the plan’s year ending in 2016 are as follows:

Tier/Plan Rate

ERS 275 229 %
3A15 © 186
4 A15 18.6
5A15 15.3
6 A15 104

At December 31, 2015, the Town reported a liability of $1,411,945 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability of ERS. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2015,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a computation of the actuarially determined indexed present value of future compensation by
employer relative to the total of all participating members. At December 31, 2015, the Town’s
proportion was .0417952% for ERS. For this first year of implementation, the System reported no
change in the allocation percentage measured as of March 31, 2014.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Town recognized pension expense in the
govermment-wide financial statements of $1,267,528 for ERS. Pension expenditures of
$1,920,663 for ERS were recorded in the fund financial statements and were charged to the
foliowing funds:

ERS
General Fund $ 821,226
General- Northwest 38,413
Town Cutside Villages 633,819
Highway 282,870
Special Districts 144,335
Totai 1,920.663

At December 31, 2015, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

ERS
Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 45198 § -
Changes of assumptions _ - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 245,237 -
Changes in proportion and differences between

Town contributions and proportionate '

share of contributions : - 41,185
Town contributions subsequent to the : :

measurement date 1,454,763 -

$ 1,745198 41,185

$1,454,763 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ERS resulting from the Town’s
accrued contributions subsequent te the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended March 31, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to ERS will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended

March 31, ERS
20186 $ 62,313
2017 62,313
2018 62,313
2019 62,313
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The total pension liability for the March 31, 2015 measurement date was determined by using an
actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2014, with update procedures used to roll forward the total
pension liabilities to March 31, 2015. The total pension liabilities for the March 31, 2014
measurement date were determined by using an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2014.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2014 valuation were as follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Inflation 2.7%
Salary scale 4.9% in ERS

investment rate of return 7.5% compounded annually, net of investment
expenses, including inflation
Cost of living adjustments  1.4% annually

Annuitant mortality rates are based on the April 1, 2005 — March 31, 2010 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2014 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2005 - March 31, 2010.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined in
accordance with Actuarial Standard of Practice (“ASOP”) No. 27, Sefection of Economic
Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations. ASOP No. 27 provides guidance on the
selection of an appropriate assumed investment rate of return. Consideration was given to
expected future real rates of return (expected retumns, net of pension plan investment expense
and infiation) for equities and fixed income as well as historical investment data and plan
performance. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in the target asset allocation as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 are summarized below.

Long-Term

Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Type Allocation of Return

Domestic Equity 38 % 7.30 %

International Equity 13 8.55
Private Equity 10 11.00
Real Estate 8 8.25
Absolute Return Strategies 3 6.75
Opportunistic Portfolio 3 8.60
Real Assels 3 8.65
Bonds and Mortgages 18 4.00
Cash 2 225
Inflation Indexed Bonds 2 4.00

100 %
The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at
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statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based upon those assumptions, the System’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make alf projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liabiity.

The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6.5%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
{6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

Town's proportionate
share of the ERS net pension liability (asset) $ 9411221 $ 1,411,945 $ (5,341,429

The components of the collective net pension liability as of the March 31, 2015 measurement
date were as follows: '

ERS
Total pension liability $ 164,591,504,000
Fiduciary net position _ 161,213,259,600
Employers' net pension liability $ 3,378,245,000
Fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability 97.9% -

Employer contributions to ERS are paid annually and cover the period through the end of the
System’s fiscal year, which is March 31%. Accrued retirement contributions as of December 31,
2015 represent the projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2015 through June
30, 2015 based on paid ERS wages multiplied by the employers’ contribution rate, by tier.
Retirement contributions to ERS for the nine months ended December 31, 2015 were
$1,454,763.

Voluntary Defined Contribution Flan

The Town also offers a defined contribution plan to all non-union employees hired on or after July
1, 2013 and earning at the annual full-time salary rate of $75,000 or more. The employee
contribution is between 3% and 6% depending on salary and the Town will contribute 8%.
Employer contributions vest after 366 days of service. No current employees participated in this
program.

Pension Trust - Service Awards Pregram

The Town, pursuant to Article 11-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and
legislative resolution, has established a Length of Service Awards Program (“Program”) for
volunteer ambulance workers. This Program is a single employer defined benefit plan established
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as a grantor/rabbi trust and, as such, the assets are subject fo the claims of the Town’s general
creditors. The Program is accounted for in the Town’s financial statements within the Pension
Trust Fund.

Active volunteer ambulance workers, upon attainment of age 18, and upon earning 50 or more
points in a calendar year after 2003 under the provisions of the Program point system, are eligible
to become pariicipants in the Program. Points are granted for the performance of certain activities
in accordance with a system established by the Town on the basis of a statutory list of activities and
point values. A participant may also receive credit for five years of ambulance service rendered
prior to the establishment of the Program. Participants are fuily vested upon attainment of
entittement age, upon death or upon general disablement and after eaming five years of service
credit. A participant, upon attainment of entitiement age (the later of age 65 or the participant’s age
after earning 50 program points), shall be able to receive their service award, payable in the form of
a ten-year certain and continuous monthly payment life annuity. The monthly benefits are $20 for
each year of service credit, up to a maximum of 40 years. The benefits and refunds of the plan are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. The Program also
provides disability and death benefits. The trustees of the Program, which are the members of the
Town’s Board, are authorized to invest the funds in authorized investment vehicles. Administrative
costs are paid by the Town from the Pension Trust Fund. Separate financial statemenis are not
issued by the Program.

Current membership in the Program is comprised of the following:

December 31,
Group 2014
Active - Non-vested ‘ 33
Retirees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 7
Terminated employees entitled to
‘benefits but not yet receiving them 3

The Town's Board has retained and designated Penflex, Inc. to assist in the administration of the
Program. Based on the certified calendar year volunteer ambulance worker listings, Penflex, Inc.
determines and certifies in writing the amount of the service award to be paid to a participant or
to a participant's designated beneficiary. As authorized by the Town, Penflex, Inc. then directs
the paying agent to pay the service award. No service award benefit payment is made without
the written certification from the Town and written confirmation.

Program assets are required to be held in trust by Article 11-A of the General Municipal Law of
the State of New York, for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and their
beneficiaries or for the purpose of defraying the reasonable expenses of the operation and
administration of the Program. Authority to invest the Program’s assets is vested in the Trustee.
Program assets are invested in accordance with a statutory prudent person rule and in
accordance with an investment policy adopted by the Town.

The Town is required to retain an actuary to determine the amount of the Town’s contributions to
the Program. The actuarial firm retained for this purpose is Penflex, Inc. Portions of the
following information are derived from a report prepared by the actuary dated May 20, 2015.
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Actuarial Present Value of Benefits at December 31, 2015 $ 479,834
Less: Assets Available for Benefits
" % of total

Short term investments 10% $ 62,502

U.S. government agencies 1% 5,357

Corporate bonds ' 7% 45 835

Common stock 43% 274,412

Mutual funds 33% 207,148

Accounts receivable 6% 37,000
Less: Liabilities -
Total Net Assets Available for Benefits (632,254)
Total Funded (Unfunded) Benefits (152,420)
Less: Unfunded Liability for Prior Service | -
Funded (Unfunded) Normal Benefits $ (152,420)

The Town is required to contribute the amounts necessary to finance the Program as actuarially
determined using the attained age normal frozen initial liability cost method. The net pension
obligation is not amortized on a separate basis. The assumed investment rate of return is 6.00%
and there are no cost of living adjustments.

The Town's annual Program cost, the percentage of the annual Program cost contributed to the
plan and the net pension obligation for the current and two preceding fiscal years were as foliows:

Percentage
Annual of Annual Net
Required Actual Program Cost Pension
Contribution  Contribution Contributed Obligation
2015 $ 36929 $ 36929 10000 % $ -
2014 32,588 32,588 100.00 -
2013 36,721 36,721 100.00 -

The schedule of funding progress for the defined benefit pension plan immediately following the
notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for the
benefits over time.

The current contributions were charged to the Special Districts Fund- Cortlandt Ambulance District
#1. Administrative fees of $2,916 were also charged to the Pension Trust Fund in connection with
the administration of the Program. -
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Claims Payable

The Intemal Service Fund reflects workers’ compensation liabilities and the government-wide
financial statements reflect workers' compensation and general liability claim liabilities. These
liabilities are based upon estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment
expenses) that have been reported, but not settied, and of claims that have been incurred but not
reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the
coverage involved. Because actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation,
changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards, the process used in computing claim
liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are recomputed
periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that
reflect recent settiements, claim frequency and other economic and social factors. A provision for
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because
reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and other factors that are
considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience.

An analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabilities is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Workers' General Workers' General
Compensation Liability Compensation Liability -

Balance - Beginning of Year $ 2161186 $ 137,568 $ 2,208,589 $ 230,204

Provision for Ciaims and

Claims Adjustment Expenses 628,301 314,381 541,364 403,754
Claims and Claims Adjustment .

Expenses Paid (487,627) (329,875) (588,777) (496,390)

Balance - End of Year $ 2,301,860 § 122084 $ 2,161_,186 $ 137,568

~ Due Within One Year 3 580,000 $ 122,084 §$ 580,000 $ 137,568

Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations Payable

in addition to providing pension benefits, the primary government provides certain health care
benefits for retired employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The various
collective bargaining agreements stipulate the employees covered and the percentage of
contribution. Contributions by the primary government may vary according to length of service.
Substantially all of the primary government’'s employees may become eligible for those benefits if
they reach normal retirement age while working for the primary government. The cost of retiree
health care benefits is recognized as an expenditure as claims are paid in the fund financial
statement.

The Town’s annual other post employment benefit ("OPEB”) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution, (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
‘parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. GASB Statement No. 45 establishes standards for the
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measurement, recognition and display of the expenses and liabilities for retirees’ medical insurance.
As a result, reporting of expenses and liabilities will no longer be done under the “pay-as-you-go”
approach. Instead of expensing the current year premiums paid, a per capita claims cost will be
determined, which will be used to determine a “normal cost’, an “actuarial accrued liability”, and
ultimately the ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a
per[od not to exceed thlrty years. -

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. In addition, the assumptions and projections
utilized do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of iegal or contractual funding limitations on
the patiemn of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future. The actuarial
calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective. :

The Town is required to accrue on the government-wide financial statements the amounts
necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined, which is equal to the balance not paid by
plan members. Funding for the Plan has been established on a pay-as-you-go basns The
assumed rates of increase in postretirement benefits are as follows:

Healthcare
Year Ended Cost Trend
December 31, Raie
2016 550 %
2017 5.00
2018 + 500

The amortization basis is the level percentage of payroll method with an open amortization
approach with 22 years remaining in the amortization period. The actuarial assumptions included
a 4.5% investment rate of return and a 3% inflation rate. The Town currently has no assets set

aside for the purpose of paying post employment benefits. The actuarial cost method utilized
was the projected unit credit method.

The number of participants as of December 31, 2015 was as follows:

Active Employees 131
Retired Employees 144
~ Total 275
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Amortization Component:

Actuarial Accrued Liability as of January 1, 2015 $ 61,480,000
Assets at Market Value , .
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ("UAAL") $ 61,490,000
Funded Ratio 0.00%
Covered Payroli (Active plan members) $ 12,520,000
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 481.13%
Annual Required Coniribution $ 5,060,000
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 800,000
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (1,050,000)
Annual OPEB Cost 4,810,000
Contributions Made (2,000,000}
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation $ 2,810,000
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Yea;r 17,930,000
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 20,740,000

" The Town's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed fo the plan and
the net OPER obligation for the current and two preceding years is as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
December 31, OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2015 $ 4,810,000 4158% $ 20,740,000
2014 4,720,000 41.95 17,930,000
2013 5,040,000 39.09 15,190,000

The schedule of funding progress for the OPEB plan immediately following the notes to the
financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of

the plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits
over time.

G. Signiﬁcant Commitments - Encumbrances
As discussed in Note 2A, Budgetary Data, encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent
necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash

planning and control. At December 31, 2015, the amount of encumbrances expected to be
honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year are as follows:
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Fund Amount
General $ 32,334
Town Qutside Villages ' 203,991
Highway 60,271
Special Districts 159,318
$ 455,914
H. Revenues and Expenditures

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are defined as the flow of assets, such as cash or goods and services, without
the equivalent flow of assets in return. The interfund transfers refiected below have been reflected

as transfers:
Transfers in
Special Capital Mon-Major
General Highway Districts Projects Govemnmental

Transfers Out Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - % - . 3 - % 22205 § 332226 & 354,431
Town Qutside Villages Fund - - B 141,726 - 141,726
Highway Fund - - - 27,500 40,351 67,851
Special Districts Fund 60,000 14,500 442 500 131,340 1,080,463 1,728,803
Capital Projects Fund 26,116 - - - 10,564 36,680
Non-Major Governmental .

Funds 360,000 - 30,000 110,564 - 500,564

3 448116 $ 14500 § 472500 § 433335 $ 1463604 $ 2,830.058

Transfers are used to 1) move amounts earmarked in the operating funds to fulfill commitments for
Capital Projects Fund expenditures and 2) move amount earmarked in the operating funds to fulfill
commitments for General, Highway, Special Districts and Non-Major Governmental funds.

L Net Position
The components of net position are detailed below:
Net investment in capital assets - the component of net position that reports the difference between
capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of debt,
excluding unexpended proceeds, that is directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or

improvement of those assets.

Restricted for Capital Projects - the component of net position that reports the amounts restricted
for capital projects, exclusive of unexpended bond proceeds and unrestricted interest eamings.

Restricted for Debt Service - the component of net position that reports the difference between
assets and liabilities with constraints placed on their use by Local Finance Law.
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Restricted for Future Capital Projects - the component of net position that has been established to
set aside funds to be used to finance all or part of the construction or acquisition of a specific type
of improvement in accordance with Section 6¢ of General Municipal Law.

Restricted for Special Districts - the component of net position that represents funds restricted for
specific purposes under New York State law or by external parties and/or statutes.

Restricted for Parklands - the component of net position that has been established pursuant to
Section 277 of Town Law. This amount represents funds received by the Town in fieu of parklands
as a condition precedent to the approval of a parcel by the Planning Board. These funds may be
used only for recreation purposes.

Unrestricted - all other amounts that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or "net investment in
capital asseis”.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds {Continued}

Certain elements of fund balance are described above. Those additional elements, which are not
reflected in the Statement of Net Position but are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet
are described below.

Prepaid expenditures has been established to account for payments made in advance. The
amount is classified as nonspendable to indicate that funds are not “available” for appropriation or
expenditure even though they are a component of current assets. :

Purchases on order are assigned and represent the Town’s intention to honor the contracts in
process at year-end. The subsequent year's appropriations will be amended to provide authority to
complete the transactions.

Subsequent year's expenditures represent that at December 31, 2015, the Town Board has
assigned the above amounts to be appropriated for the ensuing year's budget.

Retirement contributions represent funds that have been set aside to be used for retirement costs.

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts not classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned.

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

A

Litigation

The Town, in common with other municipalities, receives numerous notices of claims for money
damages arising from false arrest, property damage or personal injury. There are several tort
claims pending against the Town. However, it is anticipated that insurance coverage will be
sufficient to satisfy any resolution of the tort claims pending against the Town.

in the personal injury, property damage, and civil rights cases that are pending against the Town,
the issue of liability, in the Town’s opinion (and/or that of outside counsel who handle the majority
of the claims), is guestionable, and the Town is taking a strong defense position. However, even
if such claims were to be decided against the Town, the Town does not believe that the
consequence, individually or in the aggregate, would be such as to have a material adverse
effect on the Town's financial condition or its ability to pay the principal of, or interest on, any of
its bonds or notes when they become due, taking into consideration that the Town currently
carries liability insurance coverage up to $5 million, which covers all liability and defense costs
after a self-insured payment of the first $50,000.

There are currently pending certiorari proceedings, the results of which could require the payment
of future tax refunds by the Town, if existing assessment rolls are modified based on the outcome
of the litigation proceedings. However, the amount of the possible refunds cannot be determined at
the present time. Any payments resulting from adverse decision will be funded in the year the
payment is made.
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Town of Certiandt, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Concluded)
December 31, 2015

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies (Continued)

B.

Contingencies

The Town participates in various Federal grant programs. These programs may be subject to
program compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act. The amount of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town
anticipates such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Risk Management

The Town purchases various insurance coverages to reduce its exposure to loss. The Town
maintains a general liability policy with limits of $5 million per occurrence. There is a $50,000 self-
insured retention per claim. The Town maintains a public officials liability policy with limits up to $5
million per claim and in the aggregate. The Town also maintains an excess fiability policy with
coverage up to $5 million. There is also a $50,000 self-insured retention per claim. In addition, the
Town purchases conventional health insurance from various providers. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The Town is self-insured for workers’ compensation benefits. The Town retains the risk for claims
up to $600,000 per occurrence. Insurance coverage has been secured for losses in excess of
$600,000 per year. Employers’ liability maximum limit of indemnity is $1.0 miilion per occurrence.
Employers’ liability aggregate maximum imit of liabifity with respect to all occurrences taking place
within the liability period is $1.0 million. The governmental funds are charged premiums by the
Internal Service Fund.

*iokki
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Required Supplementary Info{rmat-ion - Schedule of Funding Progress
Pension Trust Fund - Ambulance Service Awards Program
Last Six Fiscal Years

Unfunded

Actuanal (Overfunded)

Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
Date Value of Accrued Accrued Funded

December 31, Assets Liability Liability Ratio

2009 $ 265349 § 281514 & 16,165 9426 %
2010 331,854 314,430 (17,424) 105.54
2011 358,654 357,068 (1,586) 100.44
2012 7 ) 423 547 397,796 (25,751) 106.47
2013 | 523,034 432 312 (90,722) 120.99
2014 - 570,292 ' 479,834 (90,458) 118.85

Notes - 2015 amounts are not currently available.
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Town of Cortiandt, New York

Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Contributions
Pension Trust Fund - Ambulance Service Awards Program
last Six Fiscal Years

Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
December 31, Contributions Contributions Contributed
2010 $ 45381 $ 45,381 1000 %
2011 33,528 33,528 100.0
2012 35,443 35,443 100.0
2013 36,721 36,721 100.0
2014 32,588 32,588 160.0
2015 _ 36,929 36,929 | 100.0
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Towni of Cortlandt, New York

Required Supplementary information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Post Employment Benefits

Last Three Fiscal Years

Unfunded

Actuarial Unfunded Lizbility as a

Actuarial Percentage

Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

January 1, 2015 $ - § 61,490,000 $ 61,490,000 - % $ 12,520,000 49113 %
January 1, 2014 - 59,790,000 59,790,000 - 12,100,000 49413
January 1, 2013 - 61,340,000 61,340,000 - 11,500,000 533.39
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of the
Town's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
New York State and Local Employess' Retirement System

Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Town's proportion of the net
pension liability (asset)

Town's proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset)

Town's covered-employee payroll

Town's proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

Note - The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of
the March 31 measurement date within the current fiscal year.

(1) Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting

2015

0.0417952%

$ 1,411,945

$ 10,328,073

13.67%

97.90%

Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Contributions
New York State and Local Employess’ Retirement System
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2015

Contractually required contribution , ' $ 1,983,500
Contributions in relation to the _ '

contractually required contribution (1,298.751)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -
Town's covered-employee payrolt $ 10,799,035
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll ' 18.46%

(1) Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the
Town and is used to account for and report all financial
resources not accounted for and reported in another fund..

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Town Outside Villages Fund -~ The Town Outside Villages Fund
is used to account for transactions which by statute affect only
those areas outside the boundaries of the villages located within
the Town.

Highway Fund - The Highway Fund is used to account for road
and bridge maintenance and improvements as defined in the
Highway Law of the State of New York. )

Special Districts Fund ~ The Special Districts Fund is provided
to account for the operation and maintenance of the Town's fire
protection, water, lighting, sewer, ambulance, park, drainage and
improvement districts. ' :

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of -
major capital facilities.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

General Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Taxes receivable
Town and County taxes
School districts taxes
Taxes receivable - Overdue
Property acquired for taxes

Allowance for uncollectible taxes

Other receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payabie
Due to other funds
Due to school districts
Due to other governments
Qverpayments

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance
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2015 2014
$ 11,861,109 15,969,621
461,452 542 041
39,454,262 35,525,627
2,561,527 2,420,157
692,214 248,252
43,169,455 38,736,077
(1,457,009) (1,303,383)
41,712,446 37,432,694
344,430 288,631
- 6,535 60,989
1,338,028 1,391,503
345,390 38,281
2,034,383 1,779,404
180,324 204,996
$ 55,788,262 55,386,715
$ 244,675 260,794
13,563 -
49,321,406 49,263,584
1,719 1,632
30,389 167,029
49,611,752 49,693,039
1,996,252 1,664,949
51,608,004 51,357,988
180,324 204,996
341,947 277,410
859,334 860,042
2,798,653 2,686,279
4,180,258 4,028,727
$ 55,788,262 55,386,715




Town of Cortlandt, New York

General Fund

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Years Ended December 31,

2015
Variance with
Final Budget
Qriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Real property taxes : $ 2879040 § 2,879,040 2,9098090 § 120,059
Other tax items 1,659,250 1,659,250 1,806,876 147,626
Non-property taxes 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,737,662 737,662
Departmental income 520,100 520,100 380,770 (139,330)
intergovernmental charges 231,288 231,288 239,760 8,472
Use of money and property 145,000 145,000 98,401 (46,599)
Fines and forfeftures 200,000 200,000 283,196 83,196
State aid 1,511,500 1,511,500 1,555,255 43,755
Federal aid 256,262 283,667 143,525 (140,142)
Miscellaneous 129,000 153,911 145,339 (8,572)
Total Revenues 10,531,440 10,583,756 11,389,883 806,127
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support 5,020,365 5,007,834 4,941,333 66,501
Public safety 133,027 115,027 109,456 5,571
Health 30,000 32,500 32,500 -
Transporiation 324,984 383,842 383,575 267
Economic opportunity and
development ' 621,606 685,641 674,003 11,638
Culture and recreation 2,058,771 2,213,276 2,157,874 55,402
Home and community services 14,500 17,900 17,200 700
Employee benefiis 3,181,000 3,031,374 3,025,489 5,885
Total Expenditures 11,384,253 11,487,384 11,341,430 145 964
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (852,813) {903,638) 48,453 952,091
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) '
Insurance recoveries - - 11,393 11,393
Transfers in 435,000 436,205 446 116 9,911
Transfers out (332,229) {354,434) {354,431 3
Total Other Financing Sources 102,771 81,771 103,078 21,307
Net Change in Fund Balance (750,042) (821,867) 151,531 973,398
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year 750,042 821,867 4,028,727 3,206,860
End of Year ‘ 3 - % - 4180258 $ 4,180,258
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2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
2,880,040 2,880,040 3,652,754 $ 772,714
1,639,402 1,639,402 1,686,679 47 277
3,000,000 3,447,100 3,846,327 399,227
520,100 520,100 380,994 (139,108)
231,288 231,288 228,214 {3,074)
150,000 150,000 105,510 (44,4390)
180,000 180,000 256,474 76,474
1,513,500 1,913,500 1,395,070 (118,430)
260,262 260,262 183,184 (77,078)
129,000 129,000 235,321 106,321
10,503,592 10,950,692 11,970,527 1,019,835
5017777 5,369,247 5,250,547 118,700
122,645 113,190 101,457 11,733
30,000 32,000 32,000 -
322,469 416,416 412,437 3,979
632,830 670,085 655,397 14,688
2,061,765 2,086,698 2,022,496 64,202
14,500 14,500 11,430 3,070
3,151,000 3,097,950 3,097,065 385
11,352,986 11,800,086 11,582,829 217,257
(849,394) (849,394) 387,698 1,237,092
- - 149,976 149,976
435,000 435,000 420,000 (15,000)
{337,925) {337,925) {337,919) 6
97,075 97,075 232,057 134,982
(752,319) (752,319) 619,755 1,372,074
752,319 752,319 3,408,972 2 656,653
- - 4028727 § 4 028,727
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Town Qutside Villages Fund
Comparative Balance Shest
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalenis

Receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
 Liabiiities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Assigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2015 2014
$ 1977758 $ 2247648
165,802 1,755

] 2348

90,545 12,077

] 17,783

256,347 33.963
132,238 153,747

$ 2366343 $ 2435358
$ 220515 § 404,076
4792 5,004
225,307 409,170
132,238 153 747
2,008,798 1,872,441
2.141,036 2.026,188

$ 2366343 $ 2435358
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Town Outside Villages Fund

Comparative Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Years Ended December 31,

REVENUES

Real property taxes
Non-property taxes
Departmental income

Use of money and property
State aid

Miscelianeous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government support
Public safety
Health
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
‘Qver Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) .

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End of Year

2015
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 8491288 3 8,491,288 $ 8492482 $ 1,194
775,000 775,000 775,000 -
1,110,500 1,110,500 1,209,313 98,813
15,000 15,000 2,339 (12,661)
- 78,000 108,582 30,582
60,415 60,415 142,960 82,545
10,452,203 10,530,203 10,730,676 200,473
372,598 160,534 156,978 3,556
1,384,956 1,541,345 1,517,806 23,539
16,315 16,315 15,797 518
2,525,581 2,520,789 2,467,348 53,443
3,860,662 4,083,531 3,830,680 232,851
2,576,000 2,506,806 2,485,485 21,311
10,736,112 10,809,320 10,474, 102 7335,21 8
(283,909) {279,117) 258,574 535,691
- (141,726) (141,726) -
- {141,726) (141,726) -
{283,909) {420,843) 114,848 535,691
283,900 420,843 2,026,188 1,605,345
$ - % - $ 2141036 $ 2,141,036
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2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Qriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
8,425,188 8,425,188 8429132 §$ 3,944
750,000 750,000 750,000 -
1,104,500 1,104,500 1,129,832 25,332
15,000 15,000 3,742 (11,258)
- - 2,348 2,348
80,750 80,750 5,660 (75,090)
10,375,438 10,375,438 10,320,714 {54,724)
422,040 216,612 210,474 6,138
1,294,759 1,437,379 1,420,027 17,352
16,315 16,315 16,315 -
2,613,629 2,657,031 2,630,741 26,290
3,879,045 4,043,150 3,920,567 113,583
2,508,000 2,415,124 2,414,176 948
10,733,788 10,785,611 10,621,300 164,311
(358,350) {410,173) (300,5886) 109,587
100,000 100,000 100,000 -
{94,725) (108,176) {106,133) 43
5,275 {6,176) {6,133) 43
{353,075) {416,349) (306,719) 109,630
353,075 416,349 2,332,907 1,916,558
- - 2,026,188 % 2,026,188

75




(This page intentionally left blank)




UM SOUBLEA

pLL'0cF 0L $  el¥002 ¢ 9/9°0£20L $ €02'0E50L $ £02'2SP0l
000001 - - - -
vL2'0ze0L £/¥'002 9/9'0¢2'0l £02°0£501 £02'eSr'0l
009°G GHG'28 096'2¥l GLY' 09 SL¥'09
ave'e 795'0¢ Z95'80L 00082 -
ZyL'e (1L99Z1) 6EC'C 000'GE 000°GL
ZeQ'62L L £18'86 €1£'60Z'L 00G'0LL'L 00S0LL'L
682 189'%. /81'26 00G'/1 00S'L1L
1199Y (1691 1) B80S 8y 000'09 00009
GEG'89 (6z¥'ze) G/G'/L 000°'0% 000'0¥
0GL's (0g6'8) 050'1 Qo0'0L 00001
£80'2.2 L01'ey 20L'8LE 000'6.2 000'6/2
618'G0L vl2'GZ v11'6TL 000002 000'00/
6LE'2 (689'L) LLE'D 000'8 000°g
00005, - 000'G2. 000'62/ Qo0'cLL
Zel'ser'e $ w6L'L ¢ Z8p'zer's ¢ 88T LEYR 3 882161’
[enjoy (enpeban) fenoy 190png 196png
r10¢ BAl)ISOd [euid jeuBlo
1eBpng jeul

SITHNOS DNIONVYNIL
Y3H.LO ANV S3NNIAIY TWLOL

~ puny 89lAes 198Q

ul slaysuel ]

§IOUNOS ONIONVNIL ¥IHLO

SINNIATY TV.LOL

paiyissejoun

SNOINVTIAOSIA

UOIBAIDSLIOD
aiv 3ivis

sjus wisaall Uo sBuiuieq
ALYId0OHd ANV AINOCIN 40 I8N

Buio

sjusWUIeA0l JaUlo 0] SBdIneg
s93} pleoq Bujuue|d

soo) Buuoz

599) uoioadsul Algleg
sofileyo UojEaI0al puUe sYled
sogj asudol] Bog

SNOINI TV.LNDIN LAV

flunon woJj uognguisip xey Aladold-uoN
SIXV 1L ALYId0dd"-NON

SIAXVL ALYACO¥d TvVEY

(710 0} S[emjoy aAjeledwod YEA)
GL0T ‘L€ Jaquide( pepus] jea)

19Bpng 0] pesedwion $80in0g BujDUBUILY JSUYID PUE SBNUBASY JO 8[NPBYIS

pun-{ sebejiin epIsING UMo |

IO A MBN 'JPUBILIOD JO UMO |

76



L2'0e9°¢ E¥P'Es ove'LOP'2 68L02GC 18G'62S'C
9£0°ZS TANA] LL6'8Y 00L°L9 00119 uonealoel Jnpy
06€°/9G 680'LL 9¢5'6¥S G19'09% [4AN A7 fGod
SLE'00) §2T'0e 678'€9Z'L FLOPET')L 65€'08¢e} spunoiBAeid pue syied
000609 - 000'609 000'G09 000609 Ateiqi
NOLLYIYI3Y NV J3HNLIND
GLEOL 21g 161'GlL SLE0OL GLe'9l SOlISHEIS [BYUA JO JelisiBoy
HLTVaH
L2002} BEG'EZ Q08'2LS'L SPELYS'L 966'¥RE" )
£E6'v8¢ veL's 756'8.Y 089'v8Y GL0'6EE jusiadiojue /POD
122'G8 - 8..'G8 81LG8 000G uspiem Bo(j
198'6¥6 Gos'zlL 0.0'€56 188'046 188'0/86 a30d
Al3dvs Oindnd
pL¥'0LT 966 816'9G ) $£5'091 26G'2.LE
- - - - a6z'cze Junoose AousbBupuon
=1a% 9zs'lL LV VL 000'91L 00091 xe} Ayljigow
yoneuodsuRy) BINWWOD urjjodonsiy
2LL'9L b gee'le vez'Le 000'8 swiejo pue sjuswbpnr
ovL'iE 085l 0¢.l'9t 00g'8e 00€'8¢E Jolpny
8068 5124 $ LGS'¥8 000'G8 000's8 $ aouRiInsUl pajedoljeun
, : LHOddNS INJWNEIAOD TVYHINIGD
[emay (ennefeN) [enoy 19Bpng 1ebpng
FLOT aajjiscd {eul4 [euBLo
Jobpng |euid ,

)M SoUBLBA

{10z 0] sienjoy aAjeledwod YUAN)
GLOZ ‘1€ J9qua09(] papuT JeaA

196png 0} pasedwon sesn Buisueul teyl0 pue seinypuadxs 40 ajnpayos

pun4 sabe|iA epIsING UMo|

L0 A MEN ‘IPUB[MOD JO UMO ]

77



€er'LeL0L $  BlTigee $ geg'sio’ol ¢ 9v0'LSe'0L $ ciLLeogL'oL $

£el 90l - 9¢l vl 92L° L) -

92.'v6 - - - -

LO¥'LL - 9z L ¥l 9zl 'Ll -
00€°129°01 812'GEE ZOoL'¥LP 0L 02€'608'01 ZL1'984'0L
Y AN Lie'Lz GBY'G8Y'T 908'00S'¢ 000'945°2
986 269'2 8re'zZ 000°s 000's
L1G'€1Z'L 809'/1 I RAANY 1280’ 000'99¢"}
000°0G1 - 000042 000012 000°01L2
0G.'%62 0.8 609°01¢€ TA AP RRY 000°0€€
£98'¥B9 L8l 6L8'EEO 000°F£9 000699
195'628'¢ 168'ZET 089°0€8'c LEG'CO0'Y Z99'098'c
6¥E'18Z'C z9¥'/2Z P68'¥LL'E 9/€'Z0¥'c 905G €rE €
251219 /98'G 150'vZ9 LA TA 8G¥'08Y
990°LE z B2l'LE LEL'LE 869°0¢

SASN ONIDONVNLL
YIHLO GNV SFANLIANIdXE TVL0L

83SN ONIONVYNIA ¥3IHLO TVi0L

pun4 adlaeg 198(]
pun4 sposlold jenden
N0 sig)suel]

SISN ONIONVNIL ¥=HHLO

SFAUNLIANZdXE TVLOL

syjeuaq JuswWAodwaun
90URINSUI B} PUE [BIUSD ‘Ul eaH
speuaq uofesuadwos SINJOAA
ANoas [enos

uswael 2je1g

SLidaANIg 33A0TdNE

BuippAoal pue ebegiel ‘asniey
puluue|d

Bujuoz

SADINYIS ALINNIWIAHOD ANY JINOH

[o.0]

7



" Town of Cortlandt, New York

Highway Fund

Combining Balance Sheet - Sub-Funds
December 31, 2015

{With Comparative Totals for 2014)

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenditures

Total Assetls
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due {o other funds
Unearned revenues
Total Liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendabie
Assigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Town Totals
Qutside Town-

Villages Wide 2015 2014
$ 1,693,925 $ - 9% 1,693,_925 $ 2,463,856
41,484 - 41,484 -
345 473 - 345,473 -
500 35,468 35,968 35,468
387,457 35,468 422 925 35,468
56,101 - 56,101 79,203
$ 2,137,483 $ 35468 $ 2,172,951 $ 2,578,627
$ 114,319 $ - % 114319  § 339,083
345 468 - 345,468 101,474
1,500 - 1,500 1,500
461,287 - 461,287 7 442 057
56,101 - 56,101 179,203
1,620,093 35,468 1,655,563 2,057,267
1,676,196 35,468 1,711,664 2,1 36,_47_0
$ 2,137,483 $ 35468 $ 2172951 $ 2578527
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Highway Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In

Fund Balances - Sub-Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totais for 2014)

Town Totals
Qutside Town-
Villages Wide 2015 2014
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 5,833,880 $ 27,500 $ 5911,380 § 5,817,803 -
intergovermmental charges 18,509 - 18,509 18,771
Use of money and property 1,695 - 1,695 4,309
State aid 449,095 - 449.095 336,751
Federal aid - - - 32765
Miscellaneous 290,715 - 290,715 55,072
Total Revenues 6,643,894 27,500 6,671,394 6,265,471
EXPENDITURES
Current
Transportation 5,607 557 - 5,607 557 6,690,154 -
Employee benefits 1,435,292 - 1,435,297 1,394,403
Total Expenditures 7,042 849 - 7,042,849 8,084,557
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (398,955) 27,500 {371,455) (1,819,086)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in ' 14,500 - 14,500 14,500
Transfers out {(40,351) (27,500) (67,851) (133,703)
Total Other Financing Uses (25,851) (27,500) (53,351) {119,203)
Net Change in Fund Bélances (424,806) - {424 ,806) (1,938,289)
FUND BALANCES
Beginning of Year 2,101,002 35,468 2,136,470 4 074,759
1,676,196 $ $ 1711664 3 2,136,470

End of Year $

35,468
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Town of Cdrtlandt, New York

Highway Fund - Town Qutside Villages

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Years Ended December 31,

REVENUES

Real property taxes
Non-property taxes
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
State aid.

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
Transportation
Employee benefits

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Qver Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Uses
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End-oxc Year

2015
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
5,883,880 5,883,880 $ 5,883,880 % -
310,000 310,000 - (310,000)
22,000 22,000 18,509 (3,491)
10,000 10,000 1,695 (8,305)
300,000 300,000 449,095 149,095
41,000 41,000 290,715 249,715
6,566,880 6,566,880 6,643,894 77,014
5,200,374 5,773,148 5,607,557 165,592
1,576,500 1,453,725 1,435,292 18,433
6,776,874 7,226,874 7,042,849 184,025
(209,994) (659,994) (398,955) 261,039
14,500 14,500 14,500 -
{40,352) (40,352) (40,351) 1
(25,852) (25,852) (25,851) 1
(235,846) (685,846) (424,806) 261,040
235,846 685,846 2,101,002 1,415,156
- - $ 16761986 $ 1,676,196
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2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 5,817,212 5,817,212 5,790,303 (26,909)
310,000 310,000 - (310,000)
22,000 22,000 18,771 (3,229
20,000 20,000 4,309 (15,681)

235,000 235,000 336,751 101,751

- - 32,765 32,765

40,666 40,666 55,072 14,408
6,444 878 6,444,878 6,237,971 (206,907)

5,709,022 6,772,515 6,690,154 82,361

1,467,300 1,403,830 1,394,403 9,427

7,176,322 8,176,345 8,084,557 91,788
(731,444) (1,731,467) (1,846,586) (115,119)
14,500 14,500 14,500 -
(40,197) (103,103) (106,203) (3,100)
(25,697) (88,803) {91 ,703) (3,100)
(757,141) {(1,820,070) (1,938,289) (118,219)

757,141 1,820,070 4,039,291 2,219,221

$ - - 2,101,002 2,101,002




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Highway Fund - Town-Wide

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Years Ended December 31,

2015
Variance with
Final Budget
Criginal , Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 27,500 $ 27,500 §$ 27,500 §$ -
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (27,500) {27,500) (27,500) -
Net Change in Fund Balance - - ' - -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year - - _ - 35,468 35,468
End of Year $ - % - $ 35468 $ 35468
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- 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Originai Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negativ_e)
$ 27500 $ 27500 $ 27500 $ -
(27,500) (27,500) _(27,500) -
- - 35,468 35,468
$ - 5 - $ 35488 ¢ 35,468
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Special Districts Fund

Combining Balance Sheet - Sub-Funds
December 31, 2015

{With Comparative Totals for 2014)

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

" Receivables
Accounts
Water rents
Due from other govemments
Due from other funds

Prepsid expenditures

Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Bue to other funds
Unearned revenues

Total Liabitities
Fund balances (deficits)
Nonspendable
Assigned '
Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances {Deficits)

Fire Protection Districts

Furmnace M. Airy
Dogwood Dock Cuaker North Continental
Road Road Bridge Cortlandt Village
-8 - - 3 - % -
1,231 5,865 - 5,990
1,231 5,865 - 5,980 -
1,231 $ 5,865 - % 599C 9§ -
- % - - % - 3 -
- - 26,197 - 3,875
- - 26,197 - 3,675
1,231 5,865 (26,197) 5,990 (3.675)
1.23% 5,865 {26,197) 5,990 (3,675)
1,231 $ 5.865 - 3 599¢ % -
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Water District Lighting Districis Sewer Districts
North Fawn Conklin Conklin

Consolidated Iontrose Vemplanck Corilandt Ridge Park Park East Skytep Lafayette
$ 1,943,944 -8 - % - - % - 8 - - 0§ -
18,342 - - - 34 - B8 - 29
1,610,803 - - - - - - - -
626,667 - - - - - - - -
245,378 - 5,104 75,129 25,558 4,207 14,965 925 31,662
2,501,180 - 5104 75,129 25,592 4,207 15,033 925 31,691
32,068 - - - - - - - -

§ 4477192 - $ 3,104 3 75129 25,592 3 4,207 % 15,033 825 5 31,691
¥ 558,089 8,411 $ 2,585 3 45 - § - 3 - - $ -
1,262,568 1,845 - - - - - - -
651,667 - - - - - - - -
2472,324 10,226 2,585 45 - - - - .
32,058 - - - - - - - -
1,972,810 (10,2286) 2,518 75,084 25,562 4207 15,033 925 31,691
2,004,865 (10,226) 2,519 75,084 25,592 4,207 15,033 925 31,691

$ 4477192 - $ 5,104 5 75,129 25,582 3 4,207 $ 15033 925 $ 3169
{Continued)
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Special Districts Fund

Combining Balance Sheet - Sub-Funds (Continued)
Decernber 31, 2015

{With Comparative Totals for 2014)

Sewar
Districts {Continued) Ambulance Districts
Hoilow-
brock Red Country Waterbury Emery
Ridge Qaks Waods Manor Ridge Corflandt #1 Cortlandt#2  Cortlandt #3
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 3 - § - 8 - 0% - 3 - 5 - 8 - 8 -
Receivables
Accounts - 545 - - - - 312,158 -
Water rents - - B - - - - -
Due from other gavernments - - - - - 1,862 99,034 -
Due froim other funds 1,540 16,362 13,065 6,972 18,534 76,835 880,809 541
1,540 18,807 13,065 6,972 18,534 78,697 1,283,001 541
Prepaid expenditures - - - - - - - -
Tatal Assets § 1540 §$ 16907 $ 13065 $ 6972 $ 18534 $ 78697 § 1283001 3 541
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabiiities : : :
Accounts payabte § - % - % - % - % - 0§ 37824 0§ 451,083 % -
Due to other funds - - - - ) - - 245,378 -
Unearned revenues - - 9,500 - - - - -
Total Liabilities - - 9,500 - ) - 37,924 396,461 -
Fund balances (deficits)
Monspendable - - - Co. - - - -
Assigned ] 1,540 18,907 3,565 6,972 18,534 40,773 886,540 541
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 1,540 16,807 3,565 6,972 18,534 40,773 886,540 541
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances (Deficits) $ 1540 % 16,907 $ 130685 $ 6972 § 18534 §$§ 78697 $ 1283001 3 541
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Improve-

ment
Park Districts Crainage Districts District Totals
West- Holiow-
Putnam Continental North chester brook Mohegan

Colony Village Corttandt Ridgevale Mall Skytop Lafayetie Rigjge Lake 2015 2014
$ - 8 - $ - § - $ - 3 - % - $ - $ - $ 1,943,944 $ 3300874
- o - ; - - - - - 331,178 45727
- - - - - - - - - 1,610,303 1,601,921
- - - - - - - - - - 718,563 871,963
51,660 588 2,500 2,758 3,761 - 583 6,913 1,111 31,476 1,532,622 1,894,023
51,660 888 2,800 2,758 3,761 583 5,913 1,111 31,476 4,193,164 44136834
- - - - - - - - - 32,058 27,954
$ 51660 § 888 $ 2800 $ 2758 $ 3761 3 583 $ 6913 $ 1111 $ 31478 § 6,169/166 $ 7742452
$ - 8 -3 -8 - % -3 -8 -8 - s - % 758137 847634
- - - - - - - - - 1,539,633 2,646,170
. - - . - - - - - 661,167 841,167
- - - - - - - - - 2,958,937 4,334,971
) - - - - _ - - - - - 32,058 27,954
51,660 © 888 2.800 2,758 3,761 583 6,913 1,111 31,476 -3,478171 3,379:537
51,660 888 2,800 2,758 3,761 583 6,913 1,411 31,476 3,210,229 3,407 491
$ 51660 3 888 $ 2800 $ 2758 $ 3,761 $ 583 g 6913 § 111 $ 31,476 $§ 6169166 § 7,742462
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Town of Cortiandt, New York

Special Districts Fund

Combining Schedule Of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Sub-Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2015

(With Comparative Totais for 2014)

Water
Fire Protection Districts District
Furnace Mt. Airy
Dogwood Dock Quaker North Continental
Road Road Bridge Cortlandt Village Consolidated
REVENUES -
Real property taxes $ - $ 43,809 _ § 422 554 $ - $ 155027 % 1,244,035
Departmental income - - - - - £,851,996
Intergovernmental charges - - - - - 195,676
Use of money and property - - - - - 1,843
Total Revenues - 48,809 422 554 - 155,027 7,283,650
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support - - - - - 74,630
Public safety - 55,443 411,150 - 161,000 -
Heaith - - - - - -
Transportation - - - - - -
Home ard commsmity
services - - - - - §,656,581
Employee benefits - - - - - 623,123
Debt service
Interest - - - - - 5,505
Total Expenditures - 55,443 411,450 - 161,000 6,359,839 .
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Oves Expenditures - (6,634) 11,404 - (5,873) 933,811
OTHER FiNANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance recoveries - - - - - -
Transfers in - - - - - 72,500
Transfers out - - - - - (1,193,734)
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses) - - - - - (1,121,234}
Net Change in Fund Balances ) : - (6,634) 11,404 - (5.973) {(187,423)
FUMD BAL ANCES (DEFICITS} .
Beginning of Year ’ 1,231 12,489 (37,601} 5,920 2,208 2,192 291
End of Year $ 1,231 7 $ 5,065 $ 26,197y § 5,920 5 (3679) § 2,004 868
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Lighting Districts

Sewer Districts

Hollow-
Nerth Fawn Conklin Conklin ~ brack
Montrose Verplanck Cortlandt Ridge Park Park East Skytop Lafayette Ridge
3 @5056 §- 35623 $ 508 16,021 $ 1,000 $ 5216 § 2,001 3 5498 § 3,000
- - . 167 - 68 - 1,380 -
93,058 35,623 508 10,188 1,000 5,284 2,001 6,878 3,000
82,345 25178 447 - - - - - -
82,345 25178 447 - - - - - -
12,711 10,445 61 10,188 1,000 5,284 2,001 8,878 3,000
- . - {10,000) {1,000 (5,213) {2,001) (15,947 (3,000)
- - - {10,000} (1,000) (5,233) {2,00%) {15 947) {3,000}
12711 10,445 61 188 - 71 - (9,069) -
{22,937 (7,926) 75,023 25404 4,207 14,962 925 40,760 1,540
$ {10,226} % 2,519 3 75,084 25592 § 4207 % 15033 § 925 % 31,691 $ 154
{Continued)

90




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Special Districts Fund

Combining Schedule Of Revenues, Expendiiures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Sub-Funds (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2015

{With Comparative Totals for 2014)

Sewer Disiricts {Continued) Ambulance Districts
Red Counitry Waterbury Emery
Qaks Woods Nanor Ridge Cortlandt #1 Cortlandt #2 Cortlandt #3
REVEMUES )
Real property taxes $ 30884 § 1503 8 2,011 $ 10633 § 300,081 $ 80,051 $ 245,153
Departmental income - - - - - 177,088 -
Intergovernmmental charges - - - - - - .
Use of money and properiy 545 81 - - - - -
Total Revenues 31,408 1,584 2,011 10,633 . 300,081 257,137 245,153
EXPENDITURES
Gurrent
Genera! government support - - - - - - -
Public safsly - - - - - - -
Health - - - - 143,928 925,408 -
Transportation - - - - B - - -
Home and community
senvices - - - - . - - . -
Employee benefits - - - - - - -
Debt service )

Interest - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures - - - - 143,928 925,409 -
Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues -

Over Expenditures 31,409 1,584 2,011 10,633 156,153 {668,272) 245,153
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance recoveries - - - - - 275,309 -
Transfers in - - - - - 400,600 -
Transfers out {33,860). - {1,500 - {10,632) {155,000 (21,482) (245,000
Total Other Firancing -
Sources (Uses) ) (33,860) (1,500) - (10,632) {155,000) 653,827 {245,000}
Net Change in Fund Balances (2,451} a4 2,011 1 1,153 (14,445) 153
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) \
Beginming of Year . 19,388 - 3,481 4,981 15,533 39,620 800,885 388
End of Year $ 16907 §$ 3565 % 5972 $ 18534 % 40773 § 886,540 § 541

N



Improve-

ment
Park Districts Drainage Districts District Totals
West- Hollow-
Putnam Continental North chester brook Mohegan
Colony Village Cortlangt Ridgevale Mall Skytep Lafayette Ridge Lake 2015 2014

$ - 8 5935 % - % 10,000 $ 10,003 § - % 1505 § 30 3 512 $ 2729600 § 2,736,509
- - - - - - - - - 6,028,082 5,628 003

- - - - - - - - - 195,676 191,888

- - - - - - - - - 4,184 14,611

- 5,935 - 10,000 10,003 - 1,508 3,001 512 8,058,542 8,572,101

- - - - - - - - - 74,630 61,020

_ . - - - - . - 627,503 620,533

; - - - - - - - - 1,069,337 790,620

- - - - - - - “ - 107,970 116,794

- . - - - - - - 10,071 5,666,652 5,316,927

- - - - - - - - - 623,123 502,008

) . - : - ; - ' - - 5,505 6,110

- - - - . - - - C - 10,071 8,174,810 . 7416410

- 5,935 - 10,000 10,00‘3 - 1.508 3,001 {9,559) 783,732 1,155,691

- - - - - - - - - 275,308 -

R - - - - - - - - 472,500 442,500

- (5,835) - (9,989) (10,000) C - (1,500) (3,000) - (1.728,803) {2,438 187)

- (5.935) - (9,999) {10,000) -, (1,500) (3,000) - (980,994) (1,096 697)

- - - 1 3 - 5 1 (9,559) {197,262) (841,008)

51,660 . 868 2,800 2,757 3,758 533 6,908 1,110 41,035 3,407 491 4,248 497
$ 51660 3 888 - $ 2800 3 2,758 $ 3,761 $ 583 $ 6913 $ 1111 $ 314768 $ 3210229 § 3,407,491
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Bond anticipation notes payable
Uneamed revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund balance
Restricted

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

83

2015 2014
6,095,009 5,063,586
275,000 -
167,475 756,544
18,174 824,165
460,649 1,580,709
6,555,658 6,644,295
40,754 131,785
- 33,531
2,496,021 2,910,902
1,300,000 600,000
490,000 490,000
4326775 4.166,218
2228 883 2,478,077
6,555,658 6,644 295




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Capital Projects Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance

Years Ended December 31,

REVENUES
State aid
Federal aid

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capitat outlay

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
~ Beginning of Year

End of Year

94

2015 2014

89,929 224430
223,937 7,196
275,000 23,838
588,866 255,464
1,234,715 1,310,960
(645,849) (1,055 ,496)
433,335 963,643

(36,680) -
396,655 963,643
(249,194) (91,853)
2478077 2,569,930
2,228,883 2,478,077




Town of Cortiandt, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Project-Length Schedute
inception of Project through December 31, 2015

Bond
Anticipation
Fund Balance Notes
(Deficit) at Qutstanding at
Project Expenditures Unexpended December 31, December 31,
PROJECT Budget and Transfers Balange Revenues 2015 2015
Highway Project - Bridge 3 838,500 $ 96,130 $ 742370 % 338,500 $ 742370 8 -
Jacobs Hill intersection 1,100,000 806,456 293,544 806,456 - -
Lafayetie Sewer . 432,500 403,623 28,877 432,500 28,877 -
Lafayetie Drainage 16,000 7,500 7.500 15,000 7,500 -
Skyiop Drainage 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Skylop Sewer 41,000 - 41,000 41,000 41,000 -
Fawn Ridge Sewer 160,000 - 160,600 160,000 160,000 -
North Cortlandt Drainage District 368,000 83,074 284,926 365,000 284,926 -
Westchester Mall Drainage - 537 500 72,399 465,101 537,500 465 101 -
Country Woods Sewer 10,080 - 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Putnam Colony Park 42,500 6,870 35,630 42 500 35,630 -
Cortlandt Boutevard Streetscape 115,269 115,269 - 95,859 {19,410} -
Sunset Park improvements 35,000 - 25,500 9,500 25,500 - -
Sprout Brock Water Mains 11,000 8,970 2,030 11,600 2,030 -
Annsville Circle Pedestrian Path 1,405,000 658,165 1,336,835 68,165 - -
Jacobs Hill Booster 267,198 262,226 4972 262,226 - -
Forestry Grant 7,500 3,185 4,315 3,185 - -
Septic Cleaning and Repair 312,500 226,338 86,162 312,500 86,162 -
Youth Center at Memorial Drive 2,100,000 2,092,044 7,956 2,100,000 7,956 -
Reute 6/M\esthrock Drive Intersection 700,000 124,450 575,550 124,450 - -
Fumace Dock Lake 1,710,470 1,666,799 43,671 1,675,443 8,644 -
Rouie & Betterments 1,500,000 1,499,982 18 1,500,000 18 -
[fcit Discharge Storm Water System 100,724 100,724 - 100,000 {724) -
Monirose Drainage Study 100,000 98,826 1,174 98,828 - -
Lake Meahagh Park improvernents 1,128,473 1,120,938 7,535 1,113,474 {7,464) -
Croton Park Water Tank 1,224,780 1,219,478 5,222 1,218,064 (1.414) -
Montrose Sidewalk Improvements 165,000 147,109 17,891 165,000 17,891 -
Verplanck Shoreline/Mariin Property 2,877,632 2,632,049 245,583 2,877,632 245,583 -
Safe Skate Park 744,994 741,662 2,532 744,194 2,532 -
Cregon Road Improvements 1,557,380 1,557,127 263 1,557,390 263 -
Springvale Sidewatks 135,000 37,538 97,462 37,538 - -
Community Center Playground 173,860 173,467 383 173,86C 393 -
Norwest Classroom Renovations 149,170 147,548 1,622 149,170 1,622 -
Sprout Brook Dog Park 50,500 47,536 2,964 47,536 - -
Purchase of Vehicles - Townwide 535,000 448,859 86,141 535,000 86,141 -
Purchase of Vehicles - Town Outside Villages 1,514,000 1,399,834 114,166 1,514,000 114,166 -
Purchase of Vehicles - Consclidated Water 489,000 363,626 125,374 489,000 125,374 -
Fiteration Plant 14,095,698 10,976,764 118,934 11,095,698 118,934 -
Condoen Building Rencvations 365,000 308,825 56,175 365,000 58,175 -
Centrat Data Processing 80,000 73,122 6,878 80,000 6,878 -
Kings Ferry Sidewalk 890,493 822,503 67,990 890,493 67,990 -
Cook Park Improvements 2,097,510 2,094,618 2,892 2,097,510 2,892 -
Geis Block Sewer 100,600 96,533 3,467 100,000 3,467 -
Broadway Boulevard Repairs 500,000 8,708 491,292 250,000 241,292 -
Gatewzy Park 55,000 - 24120 30,850 49,120 25,000 -
Conldin East Sewer 834,865 834,126 739 834,865 739 -
Broadway Boulevard Sidewalks 1,214,236 944,788 369,448 944,787 (1 -
Cortlandt Lake Dam 257,542 240,009 17,532 257,542 17,533 -
Annsvile Creek Marsh Path 35,000 17,824 17,106 17,894 - -
Continental Village Water Main Replacement 907,980 907,980 - 357,980 (£50,000) 550,000
Route 94 Sidewalks 26,508 11,586 15,322 26,908 15,322 -
Rowing Dock at Waterdront Park 100,000 4,792 95,208 4,792 - -
Jacob Hill Water Main Ext- Gabriel Crive 500,000 12,514 487 486 - (12,514) -
Sprout Brook Lax/ Al Purpose Field 750,060 259,991 490,009 - {255,891) 750,000
Totats $ 426133812 % 35444 174§ 7,169,638 $- 37,673,057 $ 2,228,883
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Purpose Fund - The Special Purpose Fund is used to
account for assets held by the Town in accordance with the
terms of a trust agreement.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is provided to
account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditures for principal and
interest and for financial resources that are being
accumulated for principal and interest maturing in future

_years.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

(With Comparative Totals for 2014)

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Due from other funds

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Bond interest and matured

bonds payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities
Fund balances
Restricted
Assigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilittes and Fund Balances

Total Non-Major
Governmental Funds

Special Debt
Purpose Service 2015 2014
$ 22839 § 8911 $ 31750 $ 65,708
- 2,470,706 2,470,706 2,857,303
$ 22839 $ 2479617 $ 2502456 $ 2,923,011
$ -3 9171 $ 9171 § 9.171
- 3,383 3,383 3,383
. 12,554 12,554 12,554
22 839 1,082,063 2,004,902 2 520,457
- 485,000 485,000 390,000
22,839 2,467,063 2 489 902 2 910,457
$ 22839 $ 2502456 $ 2,923,011

$ 2479617
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Town of Cortiandt, New York

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2015

(With Comparative Totals for 2014)

REVENUES
Departmental income
Use of money and property

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Serial Bonds
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
{(LUSES)

Transfers in’

Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Total Non-Major
Governmental Funds

Special Debt
Purpose Service 2015 2014
$ 66,000 % - § 66,000 78,000
42 3,398 3,440 5,910
66,042 3,398 69,440 83,910
- 1,249,000 1,249,000 1,319,000
- 204,035 204,035 244 629
- 1,453,035 1,453,035 1,663,629
66,042 {1,449.637) (1,383,595) (1,479,719)
10,564 1,453,040 1,463,604 1,663,628
(110,564) (390,000) (500,564) (487.,319)
(100,000) 1,063,040 963,040 1,076,309
(33,958) (386,597) (420,555) - (403,410)
56,797 2,853,660 2,910,457 3,313,867
$ 22839 § 2467063 $ 2,489,902 2,910,457
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Town of Cortiandt, New York

Special Purpose Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

FUND BALANCE
Restricted

98

2015 2014
3 22,832 $ 56,797
$ 22,839 3§ 56,797




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Special Purpose Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended December 31,

' REVENUES
Departmental income
Use of money and property

Total Revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Uses
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End of Year

29

2015 2014
66,000 $ 78,000
42 17
66,042 - 78,017
10,564 -
(110,564) (27,319)
(100,000) (27,319)
(33,958) 50,698
56,797 6,099
22,839  $ 56,797




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Debt Service Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet

December 31,
2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 8,911 $ 8,911
Due from other funds 2,470,706 2,857,303
- Total Assets 2,479617 % 2,866,214
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities .
Bond interest and matured bonds payable 9171  $ 9,171
Due to other funds 3,383 3,383
Total Liabilities 12,554 12,554
Fund balance
Restricted 1,982,063 2,463,660
Assigned 485,000 320,000
Total Fund Balance 2,467,063 2,853,660
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,866,214

100

2,479,617




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Debt Service Fund

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Years Ended December 31,

2015
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Use of money and property $ - $ - 3% 3,398 % 3,398
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Serial bonds 7 ‘
Principal - 1,249,000 1,249,000 1,249,000 -
Interest : 211,289 211,289 204,035 7,254
Total Expenditures 1,460,289 1,460,289 1,453,035 7,254
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures (1,460,289) (1,460,289) (1,449,637) 10,652
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) : _
Transfers in 1,460,289 1,460,289 1,453,040 (7,249)
Transfers out {390,000) (390,000) {390,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources 1,070,289 . 1,070,289 1,063,040 {7.249)
Net Change in Fund Balance (3920,000) {390,000) (386,597) 3,403
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year 390,000 390,000 2,853,660 2,463,660
End of Year $ - % - $ 2467063 $ 2467063
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2014

Variance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
- - % 5893 § 5,893
1,319,000 1,319,000 1,318,000 -
253,488 253,488 244 629 8,859
1,572,488 1,572,488 1,563,629 8,859
(1,572,488) (1,572,488) (1,557,736) 14,752
1,572,488 1,572,488 1,563,628 (8,860)
(490,000) (490,000) (460,000 30,000
1,082,438 1,082,488 1,103,628 21 ,140
{490,000) {490,000) {454,108) 35,892
490,000 420,000 3,307,768 2,817,768
- - $§ 2853680 9 2,853,660
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INTERNAL SERVICE
FUNDS

Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other
departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a
cost reimbursement basis. The Workers’” Compensation Benefits Fund is
used to account for the payment of workers’ compensation claims. .
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" Town of Cortlandt, New York

Internal Service Fund - Workers' Compensation Benefits Fund
Comparative Statement of Net Position

December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Current portion of claims payable
Total Current Liabilities
Claims payable, less current portion

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Deficit

- 103

2015 2014

3 550,408 $ - 426,783

7478 6,576

580,000 580,000
587 A78 586,576
1,721,860 1,681,186

2,309,338 2,167,762

$ (1,758,930) §$ (1,740,979)




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Internal Service Fund - Workers' Compensation Benefits Fund
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Net Position
Years Ended December 31,

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Insurance recoveries

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee benefits

Loss from Operations

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest income

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year

End of Year

104

2015 2014
$ 610,000 $ 384,000
; 22 277
610,000 406,277
628,301 541,364
(18,301) (135,087)
350 360
(17.951) (134,727)
(1,740,979) (1,606,252)
$ (1,758,930) $ (1,740,979)




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Internal Service Fund - Workers' Compensation Benefits Fund
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from charges for services

Cash received from insurance carrier

Cash payments to insurance cartiers and claimants

Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net Change in Cash and Equivalents

- CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of Year

End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations fo
net cash from operating activities
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts payable
Claims payable

Net Cash from Operating Activities

105

2014

384,000
22 277
(582,312)

(176,035)

360

(175,675)

602,458

426,783

(135,087)

6,465
(47 413)

(176,035)




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Fiduciary Funds - Agency Fund
Staternent of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended December 31, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Employee payroli deductions

Deposits

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2015 Increases Decreases 2015

781,017 822,181,515 821,840,201 1,122,331
41,042 13,521,373 13,562,415 -
822,059 - 835,702,888 835,402 616 1,122,331

- 5,781,595 5,509,896 271,899

34,180 11,460,771 11,445,771 49,190
787,869 227 459 213,886 801,442
822,059 17,469,825 17,169,553 1,122,331
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Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader understand how the Town's
_ financial performance and well-being have changed over time. These schedules include:

Net Position by Component
Changes in Net Position
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Govemmentai Funds




Town of Cortlandf, New York

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009
Primary Government
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ . 30,494,650 $ 69,095,397 $ 61,364,605 $ 61,063,877
Resiricted 11,541,404 11,390,871 11,890,029 11,671,804
Unrestricted 8,244,869 1,071,716 6,648,180 3,894,790
Total Primary Government
Net Position $ 50280,923 $ 81,557,984 § 79902814 § 76,630,471
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ 58,344,821 $ 56646805 $ 55235224 § 54,507,066 $§ 54544570 § 53,892,881
11,783,382 10,740,878 10,966,928 10,874,871 8,131,947 7,050,303
1,817,340 (541,225) (2,768,751) {4,868,227) (7,769,847) (9,198,564}

$ 71945553 $ 66,846,458 $ 63433401 $ 60513710 S 54,906,570 § 51,744,620
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities
Expenses
Generai govermnmment support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
interest

Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenuss
Charges for Services
General governmerit support
Public safety
Health -
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and-community services
Interest -
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Primary Government
Program Revenues

Total Primary Government net expense

General Revenues
Taxes
Real Property Taxes
Other Tax lterns
Non-property Taxes
Unrestricted Use of Money and Property
Unrestricted State aid
Miscellanecus
Insurance Recoveries
‘Gain (Loss) on Sale of Real Property

Total Primary Government

Change in Net Position
Total Primary Government

2006 2007 2008 2008
s 71818241 § 7304157 § 7208433 $ 7,872,287
2.032.870 2.281.120 2.264 517 9 425,765
474,304 410,098 549,872 533,904
5,833,047 7.175,245 7 437 345 7 142,208
911,516 931,837 1,054,067 983 256
5617783 5732064 5.821.278 5,827 346
8 637 783 11.472.585 12.315 300 10,998,503
576,200 522,696 500,799 470 352
31,315,414 35,619,802 37,241,611 36,253 631
155 555 152,524 153,572 145 845
622,390 906,937 434 548 478,745
101.873 37.059 65779 115,254
15.736 15,989 18,395 22,271
1.206.922 1.212.080 1827957 1,177 221
4500279 4.290.725 5,421 356 4,542 657
79173 75,820 69,750 63.777
1,167,033 1,490 228 1213479 914,042
1,044,246 1,703,577 491150 427163
8,083,207 0,893,939 0,745,984 7 886,975
(22332207) _ (25725863) _ (27.495,627) _ (28,366,656)
16,620,445 17,079,638 17 765,100 18,402,938
1177136 194,940 1315.732 1,509,976
3,743,721 3,968,585 3,934 322 3.510,046
654 540 761.800 299,125 65,321
2792500 2,611,120 1,801 958 1,349 879
129,790 147,597 304,220 256,153
_ . 420,000 .
25.118,132 25,863,680 25 840 457 25,004,313
$ 2785925 $ 137817 $ (1,655170) $  (3.272.343)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ 7394526 $ 7,499,942 § 7504770 % 7344888 $ 7916968 $ 6,706,604

2,360,174 2,525,725 2,491,102 2,301,858 2,638,189 2,651,572
651,495 796,722 766,737 1,056,847 838,335 1,117,634
7,630,245 8,159,125 7,629,644 10,866,697 10,490,811 9,187,620
851,399 890,511 1,030,479 902,430 937,365 844,603
5,415,837 6,135,245 6,322,241 6,496,403 6,391,835 6,579,896
13,845,810 12,733,023 13,097,127 13,529,853 13,213,205 14,226,045
444,369 361,560 310,592 276,059 246,016 205785
39,593,855 39,101,853 39,152,692 42,775,035 42,672,724 41,519,849
159,494 177,781 178,740 188,501 167,225 235,248
800,709 485,960 496,162 600,848 538,224 716,196
46,810 227,220 185,637 283,108 127,591 177,086
19,780 20,332 17,677 18,741 18,771 18,509
1,244,943 1,308,824 1,272,781 1,126,808 1,222,022 1,260,109
5,232,901 4,635 177 4,821,413 5,351,811 5,506,842 5,890,864
55,302 - - - - -
1,971,365 913,435 1,434,749 2,175,227 1,068,793 1,588,718
51,874 661,353 607.009 3,410,811 261,357 592,264
9,583,178 8,430,082 9,014,168 13,164,856 8,910,825 10,478,994

(30,010,677) _ (30671,771) _ (30,138,524) (29.610,179) (33,761,899) (31,040,855)
18,547,625 18,705,250 19,804,782 19,175,396 20,474,159 20,463,864
1,692,612 1,542,016 1,566,215 1,704,409 1,686,679 1,806,876
3,776,226 4,070,698 4,128,373 4,402,768 4,596,327 4,512,662
60,811 55,261 34,389 29,245 14,865 7.015
1,196,550 1,173,763 1,188,670 1,294,987 1,037,232 1,239,051
51,935 37,188 3,038 83,683 195,521 199,111
- - - - 149,976 11,393
- (11,500) _ - - - -
25,325,759 25,572,676 26,725.467 26,640,488 28,154,758 28,239,972

$ (4684918) $ (5090005 $ (3413057) $ (2919,691) $ (56071400 $  (2,800,883)
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

F'und Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009
General Fund
Nonspendable $ - 9 - % - $ -
Restricted - - - -
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned - - - -
Reserved 618,637 628,837 627,953 188,114
Unreserved 6,657,742 5,481,434 4 532,682 3,053,097
Total General Fund $ 7276379 $ 6110271 $ 5160635 $ 3,241211
All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable $ - % - % - % -
Restricted : - - -
Assigned - - - -
Reserved 4,449 803 4828720 5,180,240 4,681,331
Unreserved, Reported In :
Special Revenue Funds 4.036,238 4 280,196 5,627,912 6,286,892
Capital Projects Fund 5,828,599 3,279,492 1,406,198 1,104,316
Debt Service Fund - - 100,000 523,130
Total All Other Governmental Funds  $ 14,314,640 §$ 12388408 $ 12,314,350 $ 12,595,669
Total Governmental Funds $ 21591019 §$ 18498679 $ 17474985 3§ 15,836,880

(1)  The Town implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmentat Fund Type Definitions”,
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. '
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2010 2011 (1) 2012 2013 2014 2015
3 - 142,271 208,335 260,527 204,956 180,324
- 252,300 253,606 252,396 277,410 341,947
- 1,161,310 1,049,302 862,319 860,042 859,334
- 2,333,694 1,650,688 2,033,730 2,686,279 2,798,653
611,339 - - - - -
4,473,923 - - - - -
$ 5,085,262 3,889,575 3,161,931 3,408,972 4,028,727 4,180,258
$ - 176,684 250,886 323,706 260,904 220,397
- 7.261,548 6,673,780 5,393,797 4,998,534 4,233,785
- 8,185,409 9,284,097 10,822,457 7,699,245 7,327,532
4,512,589 - - - - -
7,531,668 - - - - -
3,883,325 - - - - -
518,630 - - - - -
$ 16,446,213 15,623,641 16,208,763 16,539,960 12,958,683 11,781.714
$ 21,531,475 19,513,216 19,370,694 19,948,832 16,987 410 15,061,972
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenues
Reai property taxes
Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transporiation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits
Debt Service
Principal
Inferest
Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Bonds issued
insurance recoveries
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage
of Non-Capital Expenditures

2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 16,412,183 $ 16,689,855 $ 17,220,085 $ 18,338,241
1,177,136 1,294,940 1,315,732 1,509,976
- 3,743,721 3,968,585 3,934,322 3,510,046
6,273,633 6,096,615 7,446,041 6,083,363
460,038 500,937 498,501 463,807
1,544,416 1,562,188 727,985 241,389
258,192 255,838 191,423 230,720
3,659,849 3,735,735 2,872,534 2,289,986
75,327 413,035 103,693 219,029
510,583 1,095,737 478,510 357,133
34,115,088 35,613,465 34,788,806 33,253,690
5,733,409 5,653,918 5,516,317 - 5,049,606
1,758,629 1,895,198 1,850,802 1,898,887
474,394 410,098 549,872 533,904
4,685,271 5,319,321 4,919,521 5,239,951
720,345 717,100 797,698 713,304
4,399,087 4,559,384 4.601,580 4,483,951
7,394,663 8,049,040 8,438,711 7,963,041
5,360,325 5,662.488 5,794,754 5,113,975
1,060,000 1,075,000 1,100,000 1,100,000
573,860 531,132 486,601 473,508
3,238,465 4,833,126 2,176,644 1,711,668
35,299,448 38,705,805 36,232,500 35,281,795
{1,184,360) (3,092,340) (1,443,694) (2,028,105)
- - - 390,000
4,350,241 3,360,733 2,734,787 2,680,291
(4,350,241) {3,360,733) (2,734,787) {2,680,291)
- - - 390,000

$ (1,184,360) $ (3,092,340) $ (1443694) § (1638105)

51%
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ 19,261,978 § 18,541,067‘ $ 18840009 $ 19,588,185 § 20,636,288 $ 20,132,561

1,692,612 1,542,016 1,566,215 1,704,400 1,686,679 1,806,876
3,776,226 4,070,698 4,128,373 4,402.768 4,596,327 4,512,662
6,971,196 6,740,439 6,962,827 7,491,233 7,217,829 7,685,165
483,930 447 562 435,723 442 512 438,873 453,945
272,440 240,272 188,120 166,987 134,082 110,059
530,051 170,710 207,721 297,964 256,474 283,196
2,617,938 1,856,581 2,538,148 4,061,088 1,958,599 2,202,361
404,676 178,633 535514 1,330,182 223,145 367,462
136,332 578,852 70,683 1,506,846 319,891 854,014

36,147,379 34,466,630 35474213 40,992,174 37,468,187 38,408,801

5,265,162 5,159,477 5,049,664 4,979,337 5,522,041 5,172,941
1,867,775 1,880,684 1,977,857 1,967,825 2,142 017 2,254 865
651,495 796,722 766,737 1,056,847 838,335 1,117,634
5,111,331 5,864,795 5,179,991 5,223,321 7,219,385 6,099,102
685,065 676,108 732,825 624,851 655,397 674,003
4,601,178 4,425 896 4,435,767 4,594,313 4,653,237 4,625,220
8,079,465 8,141,925 8,093,729 8,713,374 9,260.924 9,514,532
5,617,808 6,471,472 6,879,742 7,229,341 - 7,407.650 7,569,399
1,127,000 1,259,000 1,313,000 1,344,000 1,318,000 1,249,000
432,650 399,341 315,885 281,510 250,739 209,540
365,855 1,300,669 871,588 4,399,217 1,310,860 1,234,715

33,804,784 36,485,089 35,616,735 40,413,936 40,579,685 39,720,941

2,342 595 (2,018,259) (142,522) 578,238 (3,111,498) (1,312,140)
3,352,000 - - - - -

- _ ; . 149,976 286,702
2,719,147 2,898,311 2,929,151 2,670,879 3,504,271 2,830,055

{(2,719,147) {2,898,311) (2,929,151) (2,670,879) (3,504,271) (2,830,0585)

3,352,000 - - - 149,976 286,702

$ 5694595 $ (2,018259) $  (142,522) 3 578,238 $ (2,961,522) $ (1,025438)

4.8% 4.8% 4.7% 4.2% 4.1% 3.8%
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Revenue Capacity

These scheduies contain information to help the reader assess the Town's most significant
local revenue source, the property tax. These schedules include:

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Vaiue
of Taxable Property

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates,
Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation

Principal Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

~ Total Taxable

7 Residential Commercial Vacant Special Assessed
Year Property Property Property Eranchise Value
20086 N/A N/A $ NIA N/A $ 109,097,741
2007 N/A N/A N/A N/A 108,544,211
2008 N/A N/A N/A N/A 108,552,581
2009 81,301,610 15,057,492 1,409,845 10,899,317 108,668,264
2010 84,333,922 13,939,113 1,384,185 2,932,566 102,589,786 |
2011 83,424,247 14,284,274 1,429,970 3,024,118 102,162,609
2012 82,782,038 14,728,758 1,368,885 3,696,567 102,576,248
2013 79,676,475 13,484,007 1,319,550 3,308,730 97,788,762
2014 75,546,012 13,880,705 1,623,295 3,510,107 98,560,119
2015 79,597,009 13,864,658 3,278,630 98,081,172

N/A - Information not available

1,340,875

(1) Provided by the New York State Office of Real Property Services

Note: Estimated actual taxable value is calculated by dividing taxable assessed value by the
" state special equalization rate, Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.
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State Estimated
Special Actual Direct Tax Rate
Equalization Taxable Town Town Special

Rate (1) Value Wide Quiside Districts Total
160% $ 6,818,608,813 2337 % 14111 $§ 643 § 17091
1.52 7,141,066,513 23.35 147.28 6.62 177.25
1.61 6,742,396,335 23.35 150.48 6.86 180.69
1.62 6,707,917,531 23.76 155.26 6.86 185.88
1.82 5,636,801,429 24.94 157.68 6.85 189.47
1.87 5,463,241,123 26.01 162.57 6.87 195.45
1.86 5,514,852,043 27.26 16523 6.90 199.39
2.02 4.841,027,822 28.33 169.34 6.92 204.59
1.88 5,242,559,521 31.83 170.79 6.88 209.50
1.84 31.81 172.48 6.86 211.15

5,330,498,478
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Direct and Qverlapping Property Tax Rates,
Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cverlapping Rates

Westchester County

Total - Refuse

Direct Sewer Disposal Schoal
Year Rate Operating Districts (Range) District Districts (Range)
2006 17091 § 184.96 48.97 - § 6401 $ 21.38 77134 -$ 1,143.86
2007 177.25 183.36 2448 - 29.47 20.28 819.19 - 1,140.26
2008 180.69 184.28 23.74 - 38.42 17.56 875.25 - 1,193.60
2009 185.88 181.26 2447 - 38.85 17.10 896.86 - 1,219.62
2010 189.47 190.33 2552 - 39.51 18.05 934.02 - 1,289.53
2011 195.45 186.33 2541 - 38.27 18.08 950.81 - 1,304.81
2012 199.39 191.70 26.14 - 39.22 18.58 996.90 - 1,353.48
2013 204.59 194.62 29.09 - 41.07 18.87 997.00 - 1,382.01
2014 209.50 183.97 3248 - 41.20 17.35 1,014.62 - 1,400.13
2015 | 211.15 189.11 3375 - 43.48 17.60 1,009.42 - 1,438.83

Source: Town of Cortlandt Assessor's Office
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Principal Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

, Percent of
Net Taxable
Type of Assessed Assessed
Rank Taxpayer Business Valuation Valuation
1 NYC Acqueduct | Utility $ 5,509,805 562 %
2 Consclidated Edison Utility 5,230,308 5.33
3 Acadia Cortlandt LLC Retail Shops 1,497,400 1.53
4 Springvale Apts Apts 331,125 0.34
5 Algonguin Gas LHility 318,947 0.33
8 Scenic‘ Ridge at Amberlands Real Estate 305,000 0.31
7 NY Telephone Utility 281,607 0.29
8 Yorkcon Properties Reai Estate 275,600 0.28
9 Curry Properties LLC Auto Sales 230,775 0.24
10 Amberiands Realty Real Estate 214,500 0.22
Total $ 14,195,067 14.49 %
~ Percent of
Net Taxable
, Type of Assessed - Assessed
Rank Taxpayer Business Valuation Valuation
1 ~ NYC Acqueduct Utility $ 5,375,000 493 %
2 Consolidated Edison Utility 4,610,674 4.23
3 Cortlandt Town Center Retail Shops 1,693,375 1.46
4 ~ Entergy Utility 548,000 0.50 -
) Amerblands Real Estate 400,450 0.37
6 Nida Associates, Inc Real Estate 360,175 0.33
7 Springvale Apts Elderly Home 331,125 0.30
8 NY Telephone Co Utility 329,776 0.30
9 Algonguin Gas Utility 312,517 0.29
10 Yorken Properties Real Estate 259,825 0.24
Total $ 14120817 1295 %

Source: Town of Cortlandt Assessor's Office
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Total Collections to Date

Taxes Levied Collections
for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year Fiscal Year (1) Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2006 $ 16,860,089 16,721,599 99.18% $ 58,150 16,779,749 99.52 %
2067 17,677,175 17,438,853 98.65 73,735 17,512,288 99.07
20608 18,435,839 18,221,769 98.84 78,011 18,299,780 99.26
2009 19,292,619 19,032,934 98.65 105,717 18,138,651 99.20
2010 19,383,739 19,166,453 98.88 73,857 19,240,310 99.26
20M 19,833,302 19,607,588 98.86 19,987 19,627,575 08.96
2012 20,177,975 19,943,933 98.84 90,274 20,034,207 99.29
2013 20,739,573 20,507,280 $8.88 23,730 20,531,010 98.99
2014 21,042,697 20,811,704 98.90 27,256 20,838,860 99.03
2015* 21,229,243 21,225,340 99.98 77,888 21,303,228 100.35

(1) Includes tax levy for General, Town Outside Villages, Highway and Special Districts.

* Collections 60 days into subsequent year

Source: Town of Cortlandt Comptroller's Office
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Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town's
current levels of outstanding debt and the Town's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
These schedules include:

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type

Net Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt '

Legal Debt Margin Information




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of

General Actual Taxable Percentage of
Fiscal Obligation Value of Personal Per
Year Bonds Property Income (1) Capita {1)
2006 $ 13,515,000 12.39 % 102 % $ 34115
2007 12,440,000 11.46 0.94 314.01
2008 11,340,000 10.45 0.69 281.91
2009 10,630,000 9.78 0.66 263.48
2010 12,855,000 12.53 0.74 309.07
2011 11,596,000 11.35 0.64 278.80
2012 10,283,000 10.02 0.56 247 .24
2013 - 8,939,000 9.14 0.48 214.92
2014 7,620,000 7.73 0.39 182.48
2015 6.371000 6.50 032 152.22

{1} - Population and personal income data can be found in the schedule of demographic and economic statistics

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements
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Town of Cortiandt, New York

Net Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Cutstanding Percentage of
Generai Less: Amounts Actual Taxable Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value of Personal © Per
Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property income (1) (2) Capita (1) (2}
2006 $ 13,515000 $ 3,951,127 § 9,563,873 8.7? % 072 % % 241.41
2007 12,440,000 4,251,608 8,188,392 7.54 0.62 206.69
2008 11,340,000 | 4,329,673 7,010,327 6.46 0.43 174.27
2009 10,630,000 4,371,251 6,258,749 576 0.39 155.13
2010 12,855,000 4,413,611 8,441,389 8.23 0.48 202.96
2011 11,596,000 4,089,104 7,506,896 7.35 0.42 180.49
2012 10,283,000 3,652,704 6,630,296 | 5.46 0.36 | 159.41
2013 8,939,000 3,307,768 5,631,232 576 0.730 135.39
2014 7,620,000 2,853,660 4,?66,340 4.84 0.24- 114.14
20135 6,371,000 2,467,063 3,903,937 3.98 0.20 93.28

(1) - Population and personal income data can be found in the schedule of demographic and economic statistics
(2) - Excludes amounts available in Debt Service Fund

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
December 31, 2015

Net
Long-Term Percentage Amount
Debt . Applicable Applicable
Government Unit Qutstanding {1) to Cortlandt (2) to Cortlandt
County of Westchester $ 562,988,668 3.29 % $ 18,541,814
County Solid Waste District 14,205,910 4.19 594,991
County Sewer Districts 516,254,750 1.54 7,937,928
Villages (May 31, 2015): :
Croton 31,959,362 100.00 31,959,362
Buchanan 15,798 100.00 15,798
School Districts (June 30, 2015):
Croton 18,472,307 96.19 17,769,089
Hendrick Hudson 29,368,443 93.22 27,378,279
Lakeland 41,034,178 43.04 17,662,398
Putnam Valley 9,545,601 10.47 999,591
Yorktown 40,145,000 1.25 502,817
Net Overlapping Debt 123,362,067
Town Direct Debt ' 6,371,000
Net Direct and Overlapping Debt : $ 129,733,087

(1) Excludes the amount available for repayment in the Debt Service Fund.

(2) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the Town's taxable
assessed value that is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the Town's total
taxable assessed value.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the Town. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the property taxpayers of the Town.

This process recognizes that, when considering the Town’s ability to issue and repay jong-term
debt, the entire burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account.
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009
Debt Limit $ 397919758 § 446,268,780 $ 463,818386 § 473,133,087
Total Net Debt
Applicable to Limit 3,440,000 3,145,000 2,850,000 2,898,000
Legal Debt Margin $ 394479758 § 443123780 § 460968386 § 470,235,087
Total Net Debt Applicable
to the Limit as a Percentage
of Debt Limit 0.86% 0.70% 061% 0.61%
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2015
Assessment Roll A
: State .
Budget Assessed Equalization Full
Year " Year Valuation Rate Valuation
2014 2015 $ 98,081,172 184 %% 53304984786
2013 2014 98,560,119 1.88 5,242,559,521
2012 2013 97,788,762 2.02 4 841,027 822
2011 2012 102,576,248 1.86 5,514,852,043
2010 2011 102,162,609 1.87 5,463,241,123
Total Five Year Full Valuation $ 21,061,680,509
Five Year Average Full Valuation of Taxable Real Property 5278,435,797
Debt Limit - 7% of Five Year Average Full Valuation 369,490,506
Qutstanding Debt - Serial Bonds 6,371,000
Less: :
Exclusion for Consolidated VWater Debt 3,465,765 3,851,560
Appropriations in 2016 budget (excluding water debt) 307,558 3,773,323
Net Indebtedness Subject to Debt Limit 2,597,677
Net Debt Contracting Margin $ 366,892,829
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ 467,380,861 $ 443679921 $ 420912918 $ 394293759 § 373778747 § 369,490,506

5,069,939 4,621,027 4,168,351 3,768,438 3,465,765 2,597,677

$ 462 310,922 § 439,055,894 $ 416744567 $ 390525321 § 370312982 § 3668923529

1.08% 1.04% 0.99% 0.96% 0.93% 0.70%
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Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the Town's financial activities take place. These schedules include:

Demographic Statistics

Principal Employers




Town of Cortlandt, New York

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Population

Town

Outside Personal Per Capita
Year Villages Villages Total Income Income (2)
2006 29,564 10,052 39616 $ 13244421412 $ 33,432
2007 29,564 10,052 39,616 1,324,442 112 33,432
2008 30,055 10,171 40,226 1,646,932,892 40,942
2009 30147 'i0,198 40,345 1,616,946,910 40,078
2010 31,292 10,300 41,592 1,744,243,704 41,937
2011 31,292 (1) 10,300 (1) 41592 (1) 1,804,718,472 43,391
2012 . 31,292 (1) 10,300 (1) 41,592 (1) | 1,848,431,664 44,442
2013 | 31,292 (1) 10,300 (1) 41,592 (1) 1,848,306,888 44,439
2014 31,929 (1) 10,466 (2) 41,758 (2) 1,955,485,382 46,829 (2)
2015 31,282 (1) 10,562 (2) 41,854 (2) 2,000,453,784 47,796 (2)

Sources:

(1) 2010 Census

{2) 2009-2013 American Community survey, U.S. Census Bureau
(3) New York State Department of Labor
(4) Provided by the School Districts located within the Town
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Unemploy- Public
ment School
Rate (3) Enroliment (4)

2.80 % 7,232
420 7,339
6.60 7,216
6.30 7,472
6.80 7,174
6.60 6,987
6.60 6,924
5.20 6,834
450 6,670
3.90 6,566
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Town of Cortlandi, New York

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

EMPLOYER

V.A. Hospital

Entergy

Hudson Valley Hospital
Lakeland School District
Hendrick Hudson School District
Croton Harmon School District
NY Veterans Nursing Home
Skyview Nursing Home
Walmart

Home Depot

EMPLOYER -
Entergy Nuclear Northeast
Metro North Railroad
Hudson Valley Hospital Center
FDR Veterans Hospital
Sky View Nursing Home
Bethe! Nursing Rehabilitation Center
Tree Tops at Mohegan Lake
| Cortlandt Nursing Care Center
Big V Supermarket

Mines Press

Sources: The New York State Department of Labor

2015

PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL
EMPLOYEES ~ EMPLOYMENT
1,450 7.00 %

1,000 4.83

1,257 6.07

1,112 5.37

500 242

362 175

356 1.72

270 1.30

240 1.16

200 0.97
6,747 3259 %

2008 -
PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL
EMPLOYEES  EMPLOYMENT
1,423 1327 %

1,060 9.88

650 6.06

227 212

220 2.06

200 186

165 1.54

150 1.40

130 1.21

120 1.12

4,345

4051 %

Note: Based upon estimated Town employment of 20,700 in 2015 and 10,726 in 2006
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Operatihg information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Town's financial report refates to the services
the Town provides and the activities it performs. These schedules include:

Full-Time Equivalent Town Government Employees by Function

Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program




Town of Cortlandt, New York ' ) .

Full-Time Equivalent Town Government Employees By Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of December 31,

2006 2007 2008 2009

Function

General Government 77 77 7 77
Pubiic Safety 1 1 - -
Transportation . 34 34 7 34 34
Culture and Recreation ' _ 31 31 31 31
Home and Community Services 48 48 48 48
Total 191 1M 190 190

Source: Town Comptroller's Office
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
70 66 65 64 57 59
34 34 34 34 32 31
30 30 30 30 27 25
48 47 47 47 50 57
182 177 176 - 175 166 172
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Town of Cortiandt, New York -

Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Government Support
Assessor's Office
STAR Program Exemptions
Basic ’
Enhanced

Town Compitroller's Office
W-2's issued
1099's issued
Vouchers paid

Justice Court
Criminal cases
Civil cases
Vand T cases
Jury trials

Tax Receiver
Town and County tax bills processed
School District tax bills processed -
Croton Harmon
Hendrick Hudson
Lakeland
Yorktown
Putnam Valley

Town Clerk's Office
~Birth certificates
Marriage licenses
Death certificates
Hunting and fishing licenses
Dog licenses '

Cuiture and Recreation
Recreation

Adult programs
Adult leagues
Youth programs
Youth leagues
Pre-school classes
Youth center special events
Special events recreation
Day camps
Swimming programs

2006 2007 2008 2009
9487 9,706 9,912 9,994
1,260 1,262 1,272 1,259

605 598 598 586
155 177 177 153
9,043 8,797 9,017 8,594
1,054 981 1,041 1,551
555 502 419 270
7,123 7,034 7,248 8,066
1 - 3 2

15,214 15,227 15,232 15,390
3,766 3,820 3,821 3,827
5,087 5,174 5,176 4,273
5,600 5,402 5,604 5,606

116 117 19 119
511 512 512 512
697 817 815 901
173 134 127 125
3,791 4177 4,145 3,795
196 249 207 237
745 736 810 823
79 79 74 68
6 5 5 5
63 54 72 72
35 25 33 31
17 13 14 15
50 46 41 37
14 9 9 g
4 4 4 4
15 13 13 15

130



2010

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

9,936 9,936 9,244 9,232 8,759 8,798
1,309 1,358 1,385 1,498 1,466 1,484
593 572 540 547 558 545
162 73 148 143 138 150
8,790 8,974 8,630 8.017 8,287 8,373
1413 1,108 1176 1,186 967 968
213 241 167 178 158 162
7,020 4,529 5,352 6,333 5815 5,088
3 2 2 3 3 -

15,385 15,386 15,386 15,381 15,386 15,386
3,826 3,824 3,816 3,811 3,813 3,817
5,325 5,325 5,328 5,327 5,324 4,064
5,608 5,605 5,611 5611 5,611 5610

119 119 119 119 119 119
512 512 512 513 512 - 511
932 909 799 870 751 799
141 143 131 144 139 155

3675 4,041 3,772 4,372 3,992 4,100

242 177 163 198 543 325
856 867 871 757 761 678
65 60 75 75 83 75
5 5 5 5 4 4
60 67 80 60 59 60
25 18 28 27 26 28
14 14 15 20 28 28
31 30 15 15 15 15
9 10 11 11 10 8
4 4 4 4 4 4
16 16 16 14 15 15
(Continued)
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Operating Indicators by Function/Program (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Home and Community Services
Senior Programs
Congregate meals served
Home delivered meals
Medical trips
Shopping trips

Refuse
Refuse collected intons .
Organic yard waste
Recyclables collected -commingled
Recyciables collected -newspaper in tons

Note: "N/A" indicates data not available.
Sources: Various Town depariments

2006 2007 2008 2009
3,977 2,686 2,465 2,884
6,969 7,159 8,051 7,432
420 458 453 417
467 187 857 937
18,619 18,026 16,986 15,580
N/A N/A N/A 1,801
8,700 1,001 837 1,748
9,300 2475 3,828 3,065
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
3,073 3,100 3,014 2,702 1.988 2,407
8,057 7,004 6,779 7.767 6,593 8,659
232 213 191 272 189 158
810 854 870 721 492 461
14,880 15,323 14,802 14,630 14,528 14,432
748 2,530 2,379 1,107 998 953
804 814 662 968 1,154 1,168
1,312 886 1,381 1,734 2,047 2,018
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Town of Cortlandt, New York

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009

General Government Support

Number of general government buildings 4 4 4 4
Public Safety

Number of police stations - State police 1 1 1

Number of police stations - County police 1 1 1 1
Transportation

Miles of streets 157 157 157 157

Number of street lights 890 890 890 890
Culture and Recreation .

Number of community centers 1 1 1 1

Number of youth centers 1 1 1 1

Number of parks 13 13 13 13

Acres of parks 710 710 710 710

Playgrounds 7 7 7 7

Baseball/soitball diamonds - 7 7 7 7

Outdoor tennis courts 15 15 15 15

Soccer fields 1 1 1 1

Basketball courts outdoor 5 5 5 5

Basketball courts indoor 1 ( 1 1

Roller hockey rink 1 1 1 1

Aggressive skate park 1 1 1 1

Community room - Town center 1 1 1 1.
Home and Community Services

Miles of water mains 28 28 28 28

Fire hydrants ' : 1,394 1,394 1,394 1,394

Miles of sanitary sewers 17 17 17 17

Sources: Various Town departments
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
4 4 4 4 4 4
1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1

157 157 157 157 164 164
890 890 890 890 890 890
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
13 13 13 13 15 15
710 763 763 763 802 802
7 7 7 7 7 7
7 7 7 7 7 7
15 15 15 15 15 15
1 1 1 1 1 1
5 5 6 6 6 7
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1. 1. 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
28 28 28 28 142 142

1,394 1,394 1,394 1,394 1,394~ 1,304

17 17 17 17 17 17
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